
 
February 4, 2014                              CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                        6:00 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS   
Recognizing Sailor and Marine of the Year  

  
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held January 21, 2014 
b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos. 156965 through 156973 in the amount of 
      $799.99; and Voucher Nos. 156974 through 157122 in the amount of $732,471.99 
c.   Motion to Authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement with John Galt to serve as a 
      hearings officer 
d.   Motion to Appoint Melissa Riker to the Park Board as the alternate member 
e.   Motion to Reject the contracts to furnish two Booster Pumps due to bid errors 
f.    Motion to Purchase 490 Roll Carts for the Solid Waste Utility 
g.   Motion to Re-appoint Councilmember Campbell to the Island Transit Board of Directors 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

a. City Administrator 
b. Mayor 
c. Councilmembers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 1



6. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
a. Resolution 04-07:  Recognizing the Sister City Committee 
 
  
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 a.  Ordinance 1685:  Relating to Recreational Marijuana 
 b.  Ordinance 1686:  Extending a Moratorium on Medical Marijuana 
 c.  Ordinance 1684:  Amending the Utilities Rate Ordinance 1587 
 
 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
  
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a.   Executive Session – Potential Litigation, Pending Litigation and Property Acquisition 
 
 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

2



Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 21, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Pastor Matt Oliver of Church of Christ, gave the Invocation, and Mayor Dudley led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tempore Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Fire Chief Ray Merrill   
Councilmember Tara Hizon Police Chief Ed Green 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Senior Planner Rajesh (Cac) Kamak 
Councilmember Beth Munns City Attorney Nikki Esparza  
 City Clerk Anna Thompson 
  
Councilmember Bob Severns was excused. 
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 

Caught in the Act Award 
 
Councilmember Hizon introduced the Caught in the Act Award Caught by the Oak Harbor Youth 
Commission. 
 
Oak Harbor High School Assistant Principal Raynette Woods nominated Melissa Panfield as the 
winner of the Caught in the Act Award, accompanied by High School Resource Officer Dennis 
Dickinson.  Officer Dickinson shared the story of how Melissa found a wallet on the street and 
turned it in to him.   

 
Mayor Dudley thanked Melissa for her act of service on behalf of Oak Harbor.   
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the agenda as presented.  The motion was    
                seconded by Councilmember Cambpell and carried unanimously. 
 
  

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held January 7, 2014 

3



b. Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos. 15675 through 156887 in the amount of 
$693,472.77; and Voucher Nos. 156753 through 156964 in the amount of 
$551,379.65 

 
CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

 
Mayor Dudley opened the public comment period at 6:07 p.m.  
 
No public comment, closed at 6:07 p.m. 

 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the agenda as presented.  The motion was    
                seconded by Councilmember Servatius and carried unanimously 
 
 

STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
City Administrator Dr. Cort reminded the Council that the Auditor’s Exit Conference will be held 
tomorrow in the Mayor’s Conference Room at 2:30 p.m. and immediately following the confer-
ence will be the Council Workshop at 3:00 p.m.  
 
Dr. Court welcomed Anna Thompson as City Clerk.  
 
Mayor Dudley showed his support for the Sea Hawks. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao also supported the Sea Hawks. 
 
Councilmember Campbell mentioned he is ready for baseball season to begin.  
 
Councilmember Munns spoke in favor of the upcoming AWC action conference which will rally 
in front of capitol building to show we are a force and are listening. 
 
Councilmember Hizon thanked citizens who donated prizes for the Caught in the Act Award.  
 
Councilmember Servatius supported the Sea Hawks. 

 
 

ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

Resolution 14-05:  Relating to Navy Participation in the WWTP Project 
Public Works Engineer Joe Stowell presented the staff report including Power Point Presenta-
tion  
 
Mayor Dudley opened public comment at 6:26 p.m. 
 
No comment, public comment closed at 6:26 p.m. 
  
Councilmember Hizon added that she would have preferred the Navy’s support here but the 
City has no choice but to move forward as there is an urgency to comply.   She supported the 
resolution to re-work the numbers without Navy support.   
 

4



Councilmember Almberg noted that the City made sincere effort to include the Navy the waste 
water plans and encouraged to continue the partnership relationship with the Navy in future pro-
jects.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao asked whether it is still possible for Navy to participate at a later date 
and supported the fact that the City must forward with the project.  He also encouraged staff that 
if the Navy can join in the project later that the City should make an allowance in the project 
plans for that possibility.    
 
Councilmember Campbell inquired about the plan of action if the Navy decided to join in several 
months into building the project.  Councilmember Campbell encouraged staff to make a plan to 
include the Navy in the project if they can team up with the City in the near future. 
 
Mayor Dudley commented that the reason the City wrote the Navy in the summer of 2013 was 
to provide the Navy with enough time to receive clearance to join in with this project. 
 
Councilmember Munns stated that the City must move on and recommended the City and Navy 
make a joint press release on this issue.  
 
Councilmember Servatius asked staff questions about the letter from the U.S. Navy dated 
1/17/14 on amortizing costs.  He pointed out that the Council would like to make sure they have 
a strong relationship with the Navy and unfortunately the Navy cannot step in until 2015 and this 
project cannot wait.  
 
Finance Director Doug Merriman explained the financial aspect of the issue and Navy’s 
uninvolvement.    
 
Resolution 14-05   Relating to Navy Participation in the WWTP Project 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to adopt Resolution 14-05.  The motion was se-

conded by Councilmember Munns and carried unanimously. 
 

 
Ordinance 1683:  Relating to Panhandling 
Police Chief Ed Green presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened public comment at 6:44 p.m. 
 
No public comment, public comment closed at 6:44 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Servatius questioned the wording of the statute, specifically the definition of 
“coercion” and whether the Police Department planned to actually cite misdemeanors based on 
this statue.   
 
Chief Green noted that the particular section provided some discretion to the Police Officer. 
 
Councilmember Servatius was concerned that some citizens who that are not actually panhan-
dling will be unlawfully prosecuted while exercising their freedom of speech.  
 
Chief Green assured the Council that the intent of the ordinance was to ensure safety of citizens 
and prevent harm caused by some panhandlers.   

5



 
Councilmember Munns shared a recent incident where a panhandler was hustling a child at 
Safeway.  The child’s mother witnessed the harassment and contacted the Police Department, 
who informed her that they could not take action because the incident occurred on private prop-
erty.  Councilmember Munns asked whether the Police Chief can determine whether the prima-
ry panhandling locations are in private or public forums.   
 
Chief Green responded that his department can make that determination and will work with 
business owners on the issue.    
 
Councilmember Campbell spoke in support of the ordinance. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao lent his full support of the proposed ordinance.  
 
Councilmember Almberg supported the ordinance and encouraged citizens to give to local char-
ities.  Councilmember Almberg asked Chief Green whether their department had experienced 
specific traffic concerns around the Safeway and Barrington intersection.  He also asked wheth-
er the panhandling sign would be erected in primary panhandling locations.   
 
Chief Green replied that they have experienced traffic accidents in the area but not necessarily 
attributed to panhandling in isolation and noted that they planned to place the signs in common 
panhandling locations.    
 
Councilmember Hizon supported the ordinance and thanked the Police Department for the sign.  
She added that the Help House and local charities can provide sufficient aid to meet the needs 
of individuals in need.   
 
Ordinance 1683       Relating to Panhandling 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance 1683.  The motion was seconded 

by Councilmember Servatius and carried unanimously. 
 

 
Resolution 14-04:  Amending the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 
Senior Planner Rajesh (Cac) Kamak provided the staff report.  
 
Mayor Dudley opened the Public Hearing at 6:57 p.m. 
 
No public comment, the public hearing was closed at 6:57 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Hizon, Councilmember Almberg and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao spoke in support  
of the Resolution.  
 
Councilmember Campbell extended gratitude to Ron Hancock, who had originally espoused this  
proposal several years ago.   
 
Councilmember Munns and Councilmember Servatius thanked the Planning Department for  
finding the financial resources for this resolution. 
 
 
 

6



Resolution 14-04    Amending the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 14-04.  The motion was se-

conded by Councilmember Munns and carried unanimously. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

At 7:00 p.m. Mayor Dudley announced a 90-minute executive session to discuss pending litiga- 
tion.  
 
At 8:30 p.m., Mayor Dudley announced another 30 minutes would be necessary.  
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:04 p.m. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:    Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by 

Councilmember Campbell and carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:04 p.m. 
 
       Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk  

7



8



01/22/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

10:39:33AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 156965 1/22/2014 0007328  BEHNE, BRANDEN Ref000211135 UB Refund Cst #00161996  107.49

Total :  107.49

 156966 1/22/2014 0007323  BRYAN, ROBISON Ref000211130 UB Refund Cst #00154021  170.61

Total :  170.61

 156967 1/22/2014 0007327  CONNELLY, AARON Ref000211134 UB Refund Cst #00161836  141.20

Total :  141.20

 156968 1/22/2014 0007329  FANNIE MAE Ref000211136 UB Refund Cst #00163499  9.35

Total :  9.35

 156969 1/22/2014 0007325  FORTNER, JAMES Ref000211132 UB Refund Cst #00157182  104.70

Total :  104.70

 156970 1/22/2014 0007322  LAUGHLIN, ROBERT Ref000211129 UB Refund Cst #00152754  29.39

Total :  29.39

 156971 1/22/2014 0007324  O'BRYAN, MEGHAN Ref000211131 UB Refund Cst #00154429  106.57

Total :  106.57

 156972 1/22/2014 0007326  PERZ, CARRIE Ref000211133 UB Refund Cst #00160800  97.41

Total :  97.41

 156973 1/22/2014 0006783  TREVETT, CHAD OR RENA Ref000211128 UB Refund Cst #00125973  33.27

Total :  33.27

Bank total :  799.99 9 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 799.99Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 9

1Page:

9



01/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

11:41:40AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 156974 1/28/2014 0000712  AMERIGAS 3023819843A PROPANE/MARINA  296.63

 373.76PROPANE/MARINA3024479554A

Total :  670.39

 156975 1/28/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 44695 WEBSITE SERVICES  50.00

Total :  50.00

 156976 1/28/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  1,161.89

Total :  1,161.89

 156977 1/28/2014 0003410  BAER, DON EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  65.55

Total :  65.55

 156978 1/28/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 143665 2013 MAINTENANCE  262.39

Total :  262.39

 156979 1/28/2014 0004168  BLUETARP FINANCIAL, INC 29823246 DUMP TRP REAR ANTI SA  85.23

Total :  85.23

 156980 1/28/2014 0005930  BOTACH TACTICAL 96719 TACTICAL LIGHT PACKAGE  1,250.00

Total :  1,250.00

 156981 1/28/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 170484865211 SUPPLIES  336.23

Total :  336.23

 156982 1/28/2014 0006063  CELLEBRITE USA, CORP 134839 SHIPPING  8,583.99

Total :  8,583.99

 156983 1/28/2014 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 26422 TOWING  105.44

 81.53TOWING26478

 193.49TOWING26494

Total :  380.46

 156984 1/28/2014 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 13483497-7 OFFICE SERVICE SUPPORT  1,273.20

 875.33OFFICE SERVICE SUPPORT13495974-1

Total :  2,148.53

1Page:

10



01/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

11:41:40AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 156985 1/28/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-6 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  44,701.77

Total :  44,701.77

 156986 1/28/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1024656 40GLOB CL3/FGGNRLMLG/13W CFL 12  54.22

 6.48TMCEREXD124868

 16.23DEEP CLR COV2574959

 1,035.826IN1 RATCHET/6"P2 BIT/2-IN-1 DBLS/2PK BS26744

 27.08SCREW BIT/BAR KIT/WONDER BAR3052576

 25.02DAWN/CLR REMOVER/SCRUBBER/HD 9PK3593435

 36.74FLOOR PATCH/SCRP/MARGIN TRL/POINT TRL3593441

 275.73FG LHSHVLRP/SCREW/3PKAPGLVS/RECTORSEAL/T40448

 268.62PVC SOLVENT/PRUPL PRIMER/TRU-BLU/2 PVC M7561176

 23.8970 WHPS9026935

 33.6432G TRASHCANS9027074

Total :  1,803.47

 156987 1/28/2014 0001354  ISLAND FAMILY HEARING CLINIC 14728 HEARING TESTS  25.00

 50.00HEARING TESTS14739

 50.00HEARING TESTS14740

 175.00HEARING TESTS14742

 100.00HEARING TESTS14744

 25.00HEARING TESTS14745

 25.00HEARING TESTS14746

Total :  450.00

 156988 1/28/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 12-13 DEC 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 156989 1/28/2014 0000979  LES SCHWAB 60400061387 COMMERCIAL BATTERY  612.54

Total :  612.54

 156990 1/28/2014 0000648  NORTHWEST PUMP & EQUIPMENT CO 2456717-00 DOWNLOADING PV TRANSACT MEMORY  923.95

Total :  923.95

 156991 1/28/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-188244 COVER/FRT  197.28

Total :  197.28

 156992 1/28/2014 0007343  PARABEN CORPORATION 37490 STRONGHOLD BOX  1,610.00

2Page:

11



01/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

11:41:40AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,610.00 156992 1/28/2014 0007343 0007343  PARABEN CORPORATION

 156993 1/28/2014 0001349  PARTNER CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 6238 ELBOW CNCTR  39.08

Total :  39.08

 156994 1/28/2014 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20744444 TIER TOOTH BEAK PLIER CLAMP  29.23

Total :  29.23

 156995 1/28/2014 0000709  PERS 01025624 DEC 2013/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 156996 1/28/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200002036917 ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D 142.54

 164.58ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DRI200007268135

 13.13ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

Total :  320.25

 156997 1/28/2014 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W523 SHIPPING  14.48

Total :  14.48

 156998 1/28/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590001840921 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  194.12

Total :  194.12

 156999 1/28/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9716331038 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,782.92

Total :  4,782.92

 157000 1/28/2014 0005899  WASHINGTON AUDIOLOGY SERVICES 42558 HEARING TESTS  1,784.75

Total :  1,784.75

 157001 1/28/2014 0000987  WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY 6696606 TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS  10.00

Total :  10.00

Bank total :  73,895.48 28 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 73,895.48Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 28

3Page:

12



01/28/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

11:41:40AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4Page:

13



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 156974 1/28/2014 0000712  AMERIGAS 3023819843A PROPANE/MARINA  296.63

 373.76PROPANE/MARINA3024479554A

Total :  670.39

 156975 1/28/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 44695 WEBSITE SERVICES  50.00

Total :  50.00

 156976 1/28/2014 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 UNIFORM SERVICES  1,161.89

Total :  1,161.89

 156977 1/28/2014 0003410  BAER, DON EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  65.55

Total :  65.55

 156978 1/28/2014 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 143665 2013 MAINTENANCE  262.39

Total :  262.39

 156979 1/28/2014 0004168  BLUETARP FINANCIAL, INC 29823246 DUMP TRP REAR ANTI SA  85.23

Total :  85.23

 156980 1/28/2014 0005930  BOTACH TACTICAL 96719 TACTICAL LIGHT PACKAGE  1,250.00

Total :  1,250.00

 156981 1/28/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 170484865211 SUPPLIES  336.23

Total :  336.23

 156982 1/28/2014 0006063  CELLEBRITE USA, CORP 134839 SHIPPING  8,583.99

Total :  8,583.99

 156983 1/28/2014 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 26422 TOWING  105.44

 81.53TOWING26478

 193.49TOWING26494

Total :  380.46

 156984 1/28/2014 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 13483497-7 OFFICE SERVICE SUPPORT  1,273.20

 875.33OFFICE SERVICE SUPPORT13495974-1

Total :  2,148.53

1Page:

14



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 156985 1/28/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-6 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS  44,701.77

Total :  44,701.77

 156986 1/28/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1024656 40GLOB CL3/FGGNRLMLG/13W CFL 12  54.22

 6.48TMCEREXD124868

 16.23DEEP CLR COV2574959

 1,035.826IN1 RATCHET/6"P2 BIT/2-IN-1 DBLS/2PK BS26744

 27.08SCREW BIT/BAR KIT/WONDER BAR3052576

 25.02DAWN/CLR REMOVER/SCRUBBER/HD 9PK3593435

 36.74FLOOR PATCH/SCRP/MARGIN TRL/POINT TRL3593441

 275.73FG LHSHVLRP/SCREW/3PKAPGLVS/RECTORSEAL/T40448

 268.62PVC SOLVENT/PRUPL PRIMER/TRU-BLU/2 PVC M7561176

 23.8970 WHPS9026935

 33.6432G TRASHCANS9027074

Total :  1,803.47

 156987 1/28/2014 0001354  ISLAND FAMILY HEARING CLINIC 14728 HEARING TESTS  25.00

 50.00HEARING TESTS14739

 50.00HEARING TESTS14740

 175.00HEARING TESTS14742

 100.00HEARING TESTS14744

 25.00HEARING TESTS14745

 25.00HEARING TESTS14746

Total :  450.00

 156988 1/28/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 12-13 DEC 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 156989 1/28/2014 0000979  LES SCHWAB 60400061387 COMMERCIAL BATTERY  612.54

Total :  612.54

 156990 1/28/2014 0000648  NORTHWEST PUMP & EQUIPMENT CO 2456717-00 DOWNLOADING PV TRANSACT MEMORY  923.95

Total :  923.95

 156991 1/28/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-188244 COVER/FRT  197.28

Total :  197.28

 156992 1/28/2014 0007343  PARABEN CORPORATION 37490 STRONGHOLD BOX  1,610.00

2Page:

15



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,610.00 156992 1/28/2014 0007343 0007343  PARABEN CORPORATION

 156993 1/28/2014 0001349  PARTNER CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 6238 ELBOW CNCTR  39.08

Total :  39.08

 156994 1/28/2014 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20744444 TIER TOOTH BEAK PLIER CLAMP  29.23

Total :  29.23

 156995 1/28/2014 0000709  PERS 01025624 DEC 2013/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 156996 1/28/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200002036917 ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D 142.54

 164.58ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DRI200007268135

 13.13ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

Total :  320.25

 156997 1/28/2014 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W523 SHIPPING  14.48

Total :  14.48

 156998 1/28/2014 0004903  US BANK 4485590001840921 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  194.12

Total :  194.12

 156999 1/28/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9716331038 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,782.92

Total :  4,782.92

 157000 1/28/2014 0005899  WASHINGTON AUDIOLOGY SERVICES 42558 HEARING TESTS  1,784.75

Total :  1,784.75

 157001 1/28/2014 0000987  WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY 6696606 TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS  10.00

Total :  10.00

 157002 1/28/2014 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 011414 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  503.00

Total :  503.00

 157003 1/29/2014 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51162643 BATTERIES  232.51

 22.83BATTERIES71277317

Total :  255.34

3Page:

16



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157004 1/29/2014 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 336 JACKETS  176.09

Total :  176.09

 157005 1/29/2014 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TM-137745 SPRAY TIP/STRAINER  216.17

Total :  216.17

 157006 1/29/2014 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 34318 JAN 2014/WEB HOSTING  75.00

Total :  75.00

 157007 1/29/2014 0007351  ARCHIVESOCIAL 1135 ARCHIVING SERVICES  1,788.00

Total :  1,788.00

 157008 1/29/2014 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0521453-IN FUEL  3,222.66

 4,429.04FUEL0525618-IN

Total :  7,651.70

 157009 1/29/2014 0005649  BELLEVUE, CITY OF 123113 2014 REGISTRATION/GARDNER  65.00

Total :  65.00

 157010 1/29/2014 0003980  BHC CONSULTANTS 0005543 2013 PROF SVC/SEPTIC TO SEWERS  1,127.79

Total :  1,127.79

 157011 1/29/2014 0000098  BIDDLE, KYLE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  200.00

Total :  200.00

 157012 1/29/2014 0004631  BLAKE, KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157013 1/29/2014 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 35389-80 EMBROIDERY/HOFKAMP -32.07

 831.56VEST/KANIA37619

-50.49BOOTS/LITTLE44114-80

Total :  749.00

 157014 1/29/2014 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000298766 SOCKS/SHAMPOO/PILLOWS/SANDALS  377.75

Total :  377.75

 157015 1/29/2014 0002310  BODACH, CHARLENE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

4Page:

17



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  40.00 157015 1/29/2014 0002310 0002310  BODACH, CHARLENE

 157016 1/29/2014 0001074  BRAUNSTEIN, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  10.00

Total :  10.00

 157017 1/29/2014 0000139  BUXTON, MIKE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  178.20

Total :  178.20

 157018 1/29/2014 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 12970547 SUPPLIES  162.81

 589.88SUPPLIES175333475211

Total :  752.69

 157019 1/29/2014 0006215  CAROLLO 0132671 2013 PROF SVC/PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AN 7,284.59

 85,782.79DEC 2013/PROF SVC WASTEWATER TREATMENT P0132694

Total :  93,067.38

 157020 1/29/2014 0005251  CARROTHERS, COOKIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157021 1/29/2014 0001988  CHAMBERS, HELOISE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157022 1/29/2014 0000398  CHIEFS OF POLICE, INTERNATIONAL ASSOC OF1001096598 2014 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  120.00

Total :  120.00

 157023 1/29/2014 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 012214 PETTY CASH  10.00

Total :  10.00

 157024 1/29/2014 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  120.96

 12.71XFINITY TV8498300270032028

Total :  133.67

 157025 1/29/2014 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 929277 CONCRETE  183.16

Total :  183.16

 157026 1/29/2014 0002311  DICKEY, CHARLENE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

5Page:

18



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157027 1/29/2014 0007345  DK FLOORING, LLC 011414 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  4.50

Total :  4.50

 157028 1/29/2014 0005471  DOORMAN COMMERCIAL 313543 DOOR REPAIRS  213.05

 639.16DOOR REPAIR313544

Total :  852.21

 157029 1/29/2014 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 14-00526 TESTING  18.00

Total :  18.00

 157030 1/29/2014 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 11-413-14 PROF SVC/PIT ROAD  50,306.36

Total :  50,306.36

 157031 1/29/2014 0007350  EVAN PILCHIK PHOTOGRAPHY V-01 PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICES  2,625.00

Total :  2,625.00

 157032 1/29/2014 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK16086 FASTENERS  29.76

Total :  29.76

 157033 1/29/2014 0006480  FENWICK, KAREN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157034 1/29/2014 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300003304 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS FOR FIRST RESPONDERS 397.94

Total :  397.94

 157035 1/29/2014 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 73.92CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 62.16CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 62.60CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 56.83CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 57.25CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 182.05CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 86.13CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 31.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  892.29

 157036 1/29/2014 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 97878 LINK AS  563.78

6Page:

19



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157036 1/29/2014 (Continued)0000325  FRONTIER FORD

 81.39VALVE97885

Total :  645.17

 157037 1/29/2014 0001108  GARDEN, CHRIS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  178.20

Total :  178.20

 157038 1/29/2014 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  520.00

Total :  520.00

 157039 1/29/2014 0000349  GRAINGER 9331204702 FLUSHBOLT  100.44

Total :  100.44

 157040 1/29/2014 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-7 DEC 2013/PROF SVC WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEME 31,639.47

Total :  31,639.47

 157041 1/29/2014 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 030152 JAN 2014/TOURIST PROMOTION  6,666.67

Total :  6,666.67

 157042 1/29/2014 0007349  HALL, GAIL 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157043 1/29/2014 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS B887190 RUBBER/WASHER  279.88

Total :  279.88

 157044 1/29/2014 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1028637 INSERT FTTNG/IN-LINE/CHCKVLV  132.26

 1.08PVC BUSHING1028665

 36.84VALVE COVER1042127

-95.54100WMPS/70WHPS1092388

-7.49M ADPTR2080221

 47.77100WMPS2092301

 47.82100WHPS2561871

 14.03CPLING/TEE/STEL/ADPTR2561881

 280.46KEYPAD LEVER3028217

 140.23KEYPAD LEVER3028302

 47.7770WHPS3561827

 23.72NO KINK BIBB5053042

 28.21FAN HEATER6041663

7Page:

20



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157044 1/29/2014 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 56.67BULBS/BRUSHES/SPRAY PAINT/PAD BOARDS8041444

 15.76FILHOSRDBL9053282

Total :  769.59

 157045 1/29/2014 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 011114 JAN 2014/DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTIO  166.67

Total :  166.67

 157046 1/29/2014 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 552557-1 BACKING PADS/SPRAY/PINS/WASHERS/INSERT  358.73

Total :  358.73

 157047 1/29/2014 0000429  ISLAND COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION 011714 DUES/ESPARZA/LEWIS  100.00

Total :  100.00

 157048 1/29/2014 0002383  ISLAND COUNTY SHERIFF 010814 2013 INMATE SERVICES  14.62

Total :  14.62

 157049 1/29/2014 0001354  ISLAND FAMILY HEARING CLINIC 14727 HEARING TESTS  150.00

Total :  150.00

 157050 1/29/2014 0006362  KBA, INC 3001525 DEC 2013/PROF SVC OAK HARBOR NORTH RESER 19,268.09

Total :  19,268.09

 157051 1/29/2014 0000476  KERR, JACK 01-14 JAN 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 157052 1/29/2014 0007344  KIZER, JOSHUA 012114 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,372.77

Total :  1,372.77

 157053 1/29/2014 0006649  LABELS DIRECT 164498 LABELS  72.00

Total :  72.00

 157054 1/29/2014 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 23 MUNICIPAL COURT INTERPRETER  316.00

Total :  316.00

 157055 1/29/2014 0000506  LEIRA 012414 2014 MEMBERSHIP DUES  120.00

Total :  120.00

8Page:

21



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157056 1/29/2014 0005996  LEONARDI, CONNIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157057 1/29/2014 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400103459 WHEEL ALIGNMENT  90.76

Total :  90.76

 157058 1/29/2014 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  99.00

Total :  99.00

 157059 1/29/2014 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  75.00

Total :  75.00

 157060 1/29/2014 0004752  MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY 3798204 SENSORS -281.54

 225.99SENSOR3799764

 200.98SENSOR3800459

Total :  145.43

 157061 1/29/2014 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 496442 GROCERIES  179.68

 398.27GROCERIES496477

Total :  577.95

 157062 1/29/2014 0003508  MARTENSEN, SANDY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157063 1/29/2014 0006944  MATHIESON, SHIRLEY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157064 1/29/2014 0003939  MCINTYRE, SHARON 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157065 1/29/2014 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 011714 JAN 2014/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 157066 1/29/2014 0005127  MICHALSKI, PAT 1 TRAVEL REFUND  80.00

Total :  80.00

 157067 1/29/2014 0003369  MICRON CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP 249837000 PIN  95.99

9Page:

22



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  95.99 157067 1/29/2014 0003369 0003369  MICRON CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP

 157068 1/29/2014 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 106 JAN 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  5,500.00

Total :  5,500.00

 157069 1/29/2014 0001478  MORRIS, MARY JO 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157070 1/29/2014 0001041  MUNICIPAL ATTORNEYS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF1372980-64004476 MEMBERSHIP/ESPARZA/LEWIS  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157071 1/29/2014 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INV_424507-1 BAND/HEANET ASSY  521.76

Total :  521.76

 157072 1/29/2014 0000648  NORTHWEST PUMP & EQUIPMENT CO 2481944-00 MECH SEAL/SLEEVE/SHAFT/STUFFING BOX  22,889.71

Total :  22,889.71

 157073 1/29/2014 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 4550 FEB 2014/ADVERTISING  725.00

Total :  725.00

 157074 1/29/2014 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 127429 2013 PROV SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  900.00

Total :  900.00

 157075 1/29/2014 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 231354C CREDIT -32.96

 14.11SPLY/WAX RING EXTENDER KIT233785

 46.45PIPE/BALL VALVE/UNION/TEE/COUPLE/BUSHING233850

 23.33CONNECTOR/RULE233852

 39.80TIES/PLUGS/WIRE233879

 21.87CYLINDER/ELBOWS/PLUMBING SUPPLIES233907

 23.35ACE EXT POLE/BRUSH233971

 8.67ROLLER234081

 34.22ROPE/TARP234250

 9.76SCRAPER234266

 56.99SPRAY MARKING234270

 29.70ANGLE/BULBS/FASTENERS234271

 36.90SPRAY MARKING234312

 43.48TARGETS234333

10Page:

23



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  355.67 157075 1/29/2014 0000672 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 157076 1/29/2014 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-189749 HOSE CLMP  69.51

-69.51HOSE CLMP001-189831

 12.31FILTERS001-189832

 17.49FILTERS001-189959

 89.22SILVERLINE ELITE001-189965

 17.76BELTS001-190068

 4.40FILTERS001-190214

 16.83OUTLET001-190234

 39.22FILTERS001-190314

 421.30IDLER/STRIPE/RUNNER001-190319

 117.65FILTERS001-190323

 399.67IDLER/STRIPE/RUNNER001-190376

 61.39FLEET RUNNER001-190377

 93.76VALVE001-190384

 100.48SPARK PLUGS/BELTS001-190466

-16.31CORE RETURN001-190483

-39.22FILTERS001-190527

 4.66FILTERS001-190539

 24.06TERMINALS/CABLE/CRIMPING TOOL001-190598

 5.60HEX BIT001-190603

 23.26BEAM/CPSL001-190662

 92.26BRAKES001-190668

-28.37BEAM/CPSL/TOOL001-190670

 173.91STARTER001-190672

 4.40FILTERS001-190729

 6.92ETHANOL TREATMENT001-190846

 14.71ADAPTER001-191060

Total :  1,657.36

 157077 1/29/2014 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS 44381 MODULE  643.50

Total :  643.50

 157078 1/29/2014 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000130261 JAN 2014/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33

Total :  6,708.33

11Page:

24



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157079 1/29/2014 0002535  OAK HARBOR YACHT CLUB 011414 BUSINESS LICENSE DUPLICATE PAYMENT  100.00

Total :  100.00

 157080 1/29/2014 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0073227 TIRES  468.75

 801.16TIRES0073228

 480.69TIRES0073229

 961.38TIRES0073230

 107.96TIRES0073235

 107.96TIRES0073236

 1,393.47TIRES0073463

 64.02TIRES0073530

 656.49TIRES0073599

Total :  5,041.88

 157081 1/29/2014 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20738329 EXTRACTOR SET  75.03

Total :  75.03

 157082 1/29/2014 0002495  PICKARD, MURIEL 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157083 1/29/2014 0007083  PR DIAMOND PRODUCTS, INC 0030705-IN PIPE DRY CUTTING  133.00

Total :  133.00

 157084 1/29/2014 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 2013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPL  3,981.52

 10.792013 ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST W200000919684

 3,684.702013 ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 18.342013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 14.282013 ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 289.422013 ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 105.86ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 25.442013 ELECTRICITY/200 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS S200002037097

 10.842013 ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT200002037261

 120.342013 ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS200002037501

 10.222013 ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 10.392013 ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 221.332013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTS200002723381

 23.442013 ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

12Page:

25



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157084 1/29/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 238.10DEC 2013/ELECTRICITY/1975 FORT NUGENT RD200003459654

 24.212013 ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

 264.392013 ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.222013 ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.222013 ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 11.272013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR W KIT200005461666

 4,647.202013 ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGO200005933094

 14.292013 ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 384.872013 ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.222013 ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.832013 ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 21.542013 ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 39.892013 ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 115.552013 ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 29.572013 ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 108.262013 ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR200010530240

 10.842013 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 332.552013 ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 647.962013 ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN ROAD200010531172

 10.832013 ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 284.452013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 141.872013 ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 24.422013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLP200010699706

 1,353.592013 ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 50.442013 ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 12.822013 ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.222013 ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,241.542013 ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 3,361.412013 ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 20.512013 ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 4,297.452013 ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 122.142013 ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIF200013968405

 163.912013 ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 954.802013 ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.322013 ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 128.822013 ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVENUE200015618321

13Page:

26



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157084 1/29/2014 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 82.542013 ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR200015685833

 567.122013 ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 492.402013 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 131.902013 ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE200017575347

 84.412013 ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD200017653656

 205.212013 ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR200017654415

 15.122013 ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 102.622013 ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY200019043344

 34.592013 ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR200019500517

 44.952013 ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 1,430.472013 ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.232013 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITES200020308330

 81.462013 ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST200022441113

 51.602013 ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 31.932013 ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 67.802013 ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 36.912013 ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST200024715845

 362.802013 ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 145.142013 ELECTRICITY/2725 NE GOLDIE ST220000598098

 57.72GUN CLUB ROAD220002244337

 386.392013 ELECTRICITY/RV PARK300000005003

 60.242013 ELECTRICITY/RIDGEWOOD PARK300000010409

 531.13GUN CLUB ROAD400000512311

Total :  32,663.11

 157085 1/29/2014 0002997  QUINTON DESIGN & ELECTRICAL 2361 LIGHTING REPAIR  214.14

Total :  214.14

 157086 1/29/2014 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 011414 DEC 2013/SALES USE TAX  56,057.55

Total :  56,057.55

 157087 1/29/2014 0007348  RIECH, ALICE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157088 1/29/2014 0000911  RON TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC 41020 2014 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  1,254.35

14Page:

27



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,254.35 157088 1/29/2014 0000911 0000911  RON TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC

 157089 1/29/2014 0000781  SAFEWAY 431562 GROCERIES  68.30

Total :  68.30

 157090 1/29/2014 0002602  SCHULTZ, EDNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157091 1/29/2014 0007347  SCOBLE, RICHARD 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157092 1/29/2014 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-190139 MOTOR  51.13

Total :  51.13

 157093 1/29/2014 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 13-4954 EXTENSION WELDMENT/GASKET  413.77

Total :  413.77

 157094 1/29/2014 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH12-2013 DEC 2013/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 157095 1/29/2014 0003782  SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION C793164-701 DEC 2013/MAINTENANCE CONTRACT  0.38

Total :  0.38

 157096 1/29/2014 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545401 2013 FUEL  283.13

Total :  283.13

 157097 1/29/2014 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D 012414 JAN 2014/PUBLIC DEFENSE  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 157098 1/29/2014 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 444034 PROPANE  45.61

Total :  45.61

 157099 1/29/2014 0002901  SMITH & LOVELESS, INC 92755A SWITCH  783.61

-656.16SWITCHCR8531

Total :  127.45

 157100 1/29/2014 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 950825 SUMMARY ORD  74.76

 56.07HOOKAH LOUNGE950829

15Page:

28



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 157100 1/29/2014 (Continued)0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING

 56.07SURPLUS PROPERTY950831

 56.07BINDING SITE950832

 56.07PARK FEES950834

 43.61MARIJUANA USES952843

 180.67OAK GROVE ADDITION965702

 149.52PC 1-28-14967572

 43.61ORD SUMMARIES967576

 56.07SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION967577

 62.30UNCLAIMED PROPERTY967587

Total :  834.82

 157101 1/29/2014 0000851  SPRINT 414568819-074 LAPTOPS  268.10

Total :  268.10

 157102 1/29/2014 0000851  SPRINT 182311697 LONG DISTANCE  5.76

Total :  5.76

 157103 1/29/2014 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3219028487 TONER/STAPLER  258.51

 202.20HARDCOVER/APPT BOOK/FOLDERS/STAMP3219028488

 629.55TONER3219028489

Total :  1,090.26

 157104 1/29/2014 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 391775 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION392308

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION393386

Total :  157.62

 157105 1/29/2014 0005841  TOKAY SOFTWARE 14011 2014 SOFTWARE SUPPORT  430.00

Total :  430.00

 157106 1/29/2014 0002363  TRI AIR TESTING, INC R74204 TESTING  422.40

Total :  422.40

 157107 1/29/2014 0004847  TULL, NANCY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157108 1/29/2014 0000930  USPS FEE RENEWALS 012014 PERMIT #29  200.00

16Page:

29



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  200.00 157108 1/29/2014 0000930 0000930  USPS FEE RENEWALS

 157109 1/29/2014 0003056  VANCE, GERI 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157110 1/29/2014 0003940  VANCE, JOYCE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  80.00

Total :  80.00

 157111 1/29/2014 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9718039532 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,337.61

Total :  4,337.61

 157112 1/29/2014 0007166  VETERANS NORTHWEST CONST 8 PROF SVC/NORTH RESERVOIR  255,101.26

Total :  255,101.26

 157113 1/29/2014 0003639  VP CONSULTING, INC 00001276 2014 SOFTWARE ASSURANCE PLAN  2,293.57

Total :  2,293.57

 157114 1/29/2014 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I14004510 DEC 2013/BACKGROUND CHECKS  20.00

 478.50DEC 2013/BACKGROUND CHECKSI14004755

Total :  498.50

 157115 1/29/2014 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF19 DEC 2013/PROV SVC GENERAL  20,352.50

Total :  20,352.50

 157116 1/29/2014 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC T646183 BELT ASSY  221.74

Total :  221.74

 157117 1/29/2014 0006267  WESTERN REFUSE & RECYCLING 133881 VALVE/COIL  539.68

Total :  539.68

 157118 1/29/2014 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 198718 LUG NUTS  145.98

 30.61CLAMP/TUBING199308

 87.50ARGON MIX199417

 3.74EXHAUST199422

 3.74EXHAUST199423

 25.37NON-DETER200103

 15.20PARTS200179

17Page:

30



01/29/2014

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:42:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  312.14 157118 1/29/2014 0001000 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC.

 157119 1/29/2014 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 011314-106 PHYSICAL FAKKEMA  225.00

 341.252013 RESPIRATOR QUESTIONNAIRES12156253

Total :  566.25

 157120 1/29/2014 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 46691 BUSINESS CARDS/STOWELL  55.71

Total :  55.71

 157121 1/29/2014 0007346  WOESSNER, MARALI 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

Total :  40.00

 157122 1/29/2014 0003776  WWCCPP GROUP 013114 2014 DUES  10.00

Total :  10.00

Bank total :  732,471.99 149 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 732,471.99Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 149

18Page:

31



32



CONSULTANT/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into in duplicate this ___ day of __________, 2014, 
by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as the "CITY" and JOHN GALT hereinafter referred to as the "SERVICE 
PROVIDER". 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have certain services and/or tasks performed as set forth below 
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and 
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities, including technical and professional 
expertise, where required, to perform the services and/or tasks set forth in this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services. 
 

1.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform Hearing Officer Services and 
accomplish such tasks, including the furnishing of all materials and equipment 
necessary for full performance thereof, as are identified and designated as 
SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities throughout this Agreement and as detailed 
in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Scope of Services"). 

 
2. Term. 
 

2.1 The Project shall begin on March 1, 2014, and shall be completed no later than                  
_______________, unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein. 

 
3. Compensation and Method of Payment. 
 

3.1 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the 
performance of such services, unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in 
writing by the CITY. 

 
3.2 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER 

except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement. 
 
3.3 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this 

Agreement as follows:  
 
 $10.00 for each “no claim” default forfeiture processed; $60.00 for processing 

each claim up to and including the prehearing conference (inclusive of necessary 

33



notices and orders); and at the rate of $125.00 per hour, not including travel time, 
for actual time spent in hearing, deliberating, and preparing decisions on claims. 
The compensation schedule may be adjusted annually by the City.  

 
4. Reports and Inspections. 
 

4.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may 
require, shall furnish to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data, and 
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this 
Agreement. 

 
4.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as 

often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary, make available for 
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered, directly 
or indirectly, by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated 
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters 
covered by this Agreement.  The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports 
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities.  The 
CITY may, at its discretion, conduct an audit at its expense, using its own or 
outside auditors, of the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities that relate, directly or 
indirectly, to this Agreement.  As required by CITY, SERVICE PROVIDER will 
cooperate to respond to public record requests under the laws of the State of 
Washington.  

 
4.3       The SERVICE PROVIDER shall keep in strict confidence, and will not disclose, 

communicate or advertise to third parties, without the express written consent of 
CITY the confidences of CITY or any information regarding the CITY or services 
provided to the CITY under this Agreement. 

 
5. Independent Contractor Relationship. 
 

5.1 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDER/CITY relationship 
will be created by this Agreement.  The CITY is interested primarily in the results 
to be achieved; subject to paragraphs herein, the implementation of services will 
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER.  No agent, employee, 
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an 
employee, agent, servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose, and the 
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the 
CITY provides for its employees.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and 
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, 
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
5.2 In the performance of the services herein contemplated, the SERVICE 

PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct 
the performance of the details of the work, however, the results of the work 
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to 

34



the CITY'S general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory 
completion thereof. 

 
6. Service Provider Employees/agents. 
 

6.1 The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove 
an employee(s), agent(s) or servant(s) from employment on this Project.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER may, however, employ that (those) individual(s) on other 
non-CITY related projects. 

 
7. Hold Harmless/Indemnification. 
 

7.1 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend, indemnify and hold the CITY, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
7.2 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement, the Contractor 

waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State 
Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW.  The parties expressly agree that this 
waiver of workers' compensation immunity has been negotiated.   

 
7.3 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement 

except as expressly provided herein. 
 

8. Insurance. 
 

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
8.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of 

the types described below: 
 

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual 
liability coverage. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, independent contractors and personal injury and advertising 
injury.  The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE 

35



PROVIDER'S Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect 
to the work performed for the City. 

 
c. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
d. Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE 

PROVIDER'S profession. 
 

8.2 Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the 
following insurance limits: 

 
a. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per accident. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence, Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate. 

 
c. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) policy aggregate limit. 

 
8.3 Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed 

to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Professional 
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance: 

 
a. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
b. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance shall be endorsed to state that 

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the City. 

 
8.4 Acceptability of Insurers and policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII.  Unless otherwise agreed 
by CITY all insurance policies shall be written on an “occurrence” policy and not 
a “claims-made” policy. 

 
8.5 Verification of Coverage.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with 

original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the 

36



insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of 
the work. 

 
9. Treatment of Assets. 
 

9.1 Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY 
and the CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents, 
if any, prepared by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER may keep one copy of the work product and documents 
for its records. 

 
 

10. Compliance with Laws. 
 

10.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws and ordinances, including 
regulations for licensing, certification and operation of facilities, programs and 
accreditation, and licensing of individuals, and any other standards or criteria as 
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services. 

 
10.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and 

occupation (B&O) taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement. 
 

11. Nondiscrimination. 
 

11.1 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer. 
 
11.2 Nondiscrimination in Employment.  In the performance of this Agreement, the 

SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or the use of a trained 
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability; provided that the 
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability, or the use 
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, shall not 
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular 
worker involved.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment without 
discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained 
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation, and programs for training including apprenticeships.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as 

37



may be required to ensure full compliance with local, state and federal laws 
prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
11.3 Nondiscrimination in Services.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate 

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on 
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence 
of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or 
service animal by a person with a disability. 

 
11.4 If any assignment and/or subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY, said 

assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against 
discrimination.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be 
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately 
preceding paragraphs herein. 

 
12. Assignment/subcontracting. 
 

12.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this 
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the 
CITY, and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any 
proposed assignment.  The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any 
such assignment. 

 
12.2 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this 

Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local, 
state and/or federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines. 

 
12.3 Any technical/professional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement, must 

have express advance approval by the CITY. 
 

13. Changes. 
 

13.1 Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be 
provided hereunder, however, no change or addition to this Agreement shall be 
valid or binding upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing 
and signed by both parties.  Such amendments shall be attached to and made part 
of this Agreement. 

 
14. Maintenance and Inspection of Records. 
 

14.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books, records and documents, which 
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures 
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid 

38



pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject at all reasonable times 
to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized representative, the 
State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this 
Agreement. 

 
14.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books, records, documents and other 

material relevant to this Agreement, for six (6) years after its expiration.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access 
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said 
period. 

 
15. Other Provisions. 
 

15.1 The following additional terms shall apply:  It is agreed between the parties that 
pursuant to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be 
expanded, the parties shall negotiate an appropriate amendment.  If after thirty 
(30) days of negotiation, agreement cannot be reached, the CITY may terminate 
this Agreement no sooner than sixty (60) days thereafter. 

 
15.2 This agreement shall not constitute nor create an employer/employee relationship 

and John Galt shall not acquire, as a result of this agreement any employee 
benefits which may now exist or hereafter be established by the Oak Harbor 
Police Department for its employees, either by ordinances, practice, contract or 
otherwise, including but not limited to, annual vacation leave, sick leave, health 
and accident insurance coverage or retirement benefits. John Galt shall be solely 
responsible for payment of all taxes and fees, including businesses license fees 
and social security fees.    

 
15.3 Nothing in this agreement shall constitute a guarantee to provide a minimum 

amount of work or a promise to supply work to John Galt by the Oak Harbor 
Police Department. Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent the Oak Harbor 
Police Department from assigning hearing duties under RCW 10.105.010(5) and 
69.50.505(c) to other persons, either by way of agreements or employment.  

 
 

16. Termination. 
 

16.1 Termination for Convenience.  The CITY may terminate this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, at any time, by giving at least thirty (30) days' written notice to 
the SERVICE PROVIDER.  Upon such termination for convenience, the City 
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this 
Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
16.2 Termination for Cause.  If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the 

manner called for in this Agreement, or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to 
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such 

39



noncompliance within five (5) days' written notice thereof, the CITY may 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a 
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in 
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will 
only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of 
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
16.3     Work Product.  In the event of any termination whether for convenience or cause, 

all work product of the SERVICE PROVIDER, along with a summary of the 
work to the date of termination shall become the property of CITY. 

 
17. Notice. 
 

17.1 Provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses 
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement. 

 
 

18. Attorneys Fees and Costs. 
 

18.1 If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or 
because of a dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any 
of the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover from the other party, in addition to any other relief to which such party 
may be entitled, reasonable attorney's fees and other costs incurred in that action 
or proceeding. 

 
19. Jurisdiction and Venue. 
 

19.1 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and 
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that 
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
interpretation and performance. 

 
19.2 Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of 

this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only 
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County, Washington. 

 
20. Severability. 
 

20.1 If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of the United States to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

40



20.2 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, said provision that may conflict therewith 
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 
therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions. 

 
21. Entire Agreement. 
 

21.1 The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms 
hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are 
excluded.  Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
signed by both parties.  Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein 
shall constitute a material breach of contract and be cause for termination.  Both 
parties recognize time is of the essence in the performance of the provisions of 
this Agreement.  It is also agreed by the parties that the forgiveness of the 
nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver 
of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first hereinabove written. 
 
CITY:       SERVICE PROVIDER: 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR    John Galt 
865 SE Barrington Drive    Quasi- Judicial Hearing Services 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277    927 Grand Ave 
       Everett, WA  98201 
 
              
Scott Dudley, Mayor     John Galt  
 
Attest: 
 
        
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 

41



 
 

EXHIBIT A (Scope of Services) 
 

 
 

1. John Galt is hereafter the designee of the Oak Harbor Chief of Police under RCW 
10.105.010(5) and 69.50.505(c) for those personal property claims assigned to him by the 
Oak Harbor Police Department. In this capacity he shall provide notice of conferences 
and hearings as required under RCW 10.105.010(5) and 69.50.505(c) and RCW Chapter 
34.05; may conduct a prehearing conference to proeprly prepare a claim for open hearing; 
shall receive and examine evidence submitted  in open hearing; shall conduct hearings 
and prepare a record thereof; shall enter findings of fact and conclusions based 
thereupon; shall render decisions as provided by RCW 10.105.010(5) and 69.50.5050(c) 
and RCW Chpater 34.05; and shall provide a decision copying and distribution services 
as required under RCW 10.105.010(5) and 69.50.505(c) and RCW Chapter 34.05. Galt 
shall provide a signed original of each decision to the Oak Harbor Police Department.  

 
2. John Galt may, at his sole discretion, excuse himself from hearing any item that may pose 

a conflict of interest on its part or which may otherwise conflict with a priviously 
scheduled obligations. John Galt shall endeavor to give the Oak Harbor Police 
Department as much advance notice as possible of his inability to hear any item so that a 
pro temore hearing officer can be selcted.  
 

3. All required hearings shall be heard in Oak Harbor, WA.  
 

4. The Oak Harbor Police Department shall arrange for and provide a hearing room and 
facilities (including a recording system or court reporter). Provisions of a hearing clerk or 
equivalent for each hearing are optional at the Oak Harbor Police Department’s choice. 
The Oak Harbor Police Department shall pay all costs and expenses associated with such 
support.  
 

5. John Galt shall render his services as required under this agreement pursuant to the time 
constraints identified in RCW 10.105.010(5) and 69.50.505(c) and RCW Chapter 34.05.  
 
 
 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



RESOLUTION:  14-07 

A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A CITY OF OAK HARBOR SISTER CITY 
PROGRAM AND ADOPT POLICIES FOR THE FORMATION OF THE OAK HARBOR 

SISTER CITY ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Oak Harbor have demonstrated a desire to learn more about people 
of other communities throughout the world, enhancing international communication and 
understanding; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor encourages educational, cultural, athletic, trade, business, 
technology and governmental exchanges with the diverse people of the world; and  

WHEREAS, it is the intention of Oak Harbor to encourage good will and tourism with its sister 
cities; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor wishes to develop municipal partnerships with similar 
jurisdictions in other countries; and  

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor’s sister cities should be carefully selected to ensure that relationships 
will be sustainable, enhance cultural awareness and improve relations among citizens of the 
world; and 

WHEREAS, sister city relationships should be based upon common interests and characteristics 
important to both Oak Harbor and sister cities established under the Sister City Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor pledges its support to the community with the establishment 
of a Sister City Program, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Oak Harbor, 
Washington that an Oak Harbor Sister City Program be established. 

 Passed by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this ____ day 
of ________, 2014. 

                   CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
Attest:  
 
                ____________________________ 
___________________________            SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk             
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney 

49



50



51



52



53



ORDINANCE NO. 1685 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR: 
 
WHEREAS, the voters of Washington State approved Initiative 502 (I-502) in November 2012 
legalizing under State law the taxing and regulating of  recreational use of marijuana, codified in 
Chapter 69.50 RCW ; and  
 
WHEREAS, under I-502, the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) was tasked with 
the responsibility to adopt the rules governing the licensing and operations of marijuana 
producers, processors, and retailers, and the rules went into effect on Nov. 16, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, on August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice distributed a guidance memo to 
U.S. Attorneys regarding state implementation of recreational marijuana ballot measures and 
setting forth the federal government enforcement priorities, essentially acknowledging that as 
long as state regulation and enforcement is sufficiently robust and consistent with federal 
priorities, the federal government may choose not to interfere; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 1,000-foot separations from sensitive uses required by I-502 and included in the 
adopted licensing rules are principally about protecting children, which the City Council and the 
citizens of Oak Harbor support; and 
 
WHEREAS, the LCB has created three categories of state licenses and prohibits holders of a 
retail license from also holding a production or processing license;   
 
WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council finds that establishment of marijuana related uses 
without appropriate regulations could lead to negative secondary impacts to the community, 
including but not necessarily limited to: 
 

1. Conversion of residential uses into cannabis cultivation and processing facilities 
removing valuable housing stock from the community. 

2. Degraded neighborhood aesthetics due to shuttered-up homes, offensive odors, increased 
nighttime traffic, and parking. 

3. Environmental damages from chemicals being discharged into surrounding and off-site 
soils, and into storm and sanitary sewer systems. 

4. Risk of fire hazard due to overloaded service connections used to operate grow lights and 
fans. 

5. Illegal structural modifications. 
6. Criminal issues such as burglary, theft and property damage. 

 

54



WHEREAS, an undue concentration of licensed marijuana facilities in the City of Oak Harbor 
could be detrimental to the quality of life of Oak Harbor residents and the economic well-being 
of the city; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to address secondary impacts of such businesses, the Oak Harbor City 
Council deems it to be in the public interest to establish zoning regulations related to state-
licensed marijuana facilities and to require all such facilities to obtain a City of Oak Harbor 
business license; and   
 
WHEREAS, the intent to amend development regulations to allow state-licensed marijuana 
facilities and a SEPA Determination of Non Significance were noticed in accordance with City 
of Oak Harbor procedures and regulations; and  
 
WHEREAS, a Determination of Non Significance was issued on December 28, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 
26, 2013, December 10, 2013 and January 28, 2014 to consider this ordinance and forwarded a 
recommendation of approval to the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak City Council held a public hearing on February 4, 2014 to consider 
this ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 
approve violation of federal or state law;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 
 
Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.22 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
which shall have the following title and sections: 
 
Chapter 19.22 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES 
 
Sections:  
19.22.010  Purpose and Intent 
19.22.020  Definitions 
19.22.030  Locations Allowed 
19.22.040  Development Standards 
19.22.050  Non-conforming Use 
 

55



Section Two.   
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.010 entitled “Purpose and Intent” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
The production, processing and retailing of marijuana is and remains illegal under federal law.  
Nothing herein or as provided elsewhere in the ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor is an 
authorization to circumvent federal law or provide permission to any person or entity to violate 
federal law.  Only state-licensed marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 
retailers may locate in the City of Oak Harbor and then only pursuant to a license issued by the 
State of Washington and only when in full compliance with the local regulations contained in 
herein.  These regulations are  solely intended to acknowledge the enactment by Washington 
voters of Initiative 502 and state licensing procedure and to permit,  but only to the extent 
required by state law, marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana retailers to 
operate in designated zones of the City.  These provisions are intended to mitigate potential 
secondary impacts of marijuana related uses on nearby properties and the community and to 
promote the public health, safety and welfare through the application of appropriate locational 
criteria, zoning and development standards.   
 
Section Three. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.020 entitled “Definitions” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) “Child care center” means an entity that regularly provides child day care, preschool and 

early learning services for a group of children for periods of less than twenty-four hours 
licensed by the Washington state department of early learning under Chapter 170-295 
WAC. 

 
(2) “Elementary school” means a school for early education that provides the first four to 

eight years of basic education and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of 
public instruction. 

 
(3) “Game arcade” means an entertainment venue featuring primarily video games, 

simulators, and/or other amusement devices where persons under twenty-one years of 
age are not restricted. 

 
(4) “Library” means an organized collection of resources made accessible to the public 

for reference or borrowing supported with money derived from taxation. 
 
(5) “Marijuana” or “marihuana” means all parts of the plant Cannabis, whether growing or 

not, with a THC concentration greater than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis; the seeds 

56



thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, 
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin. The 
term does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil 
or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, 
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted there 
from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seeds of the plant which is incapable of 
germination. 

 
(6) “Marijuana facility” means a state-licensed marijuana production, processing, or 

retail facility.. Marijuana facilities shall not be a home occupation as defined in 
OHMC 19.08 -Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 19.34. 

 
(7) “Marijuana-infused products” means products that contain marijuana or marijuana 

extracts and are intended for human use. The term “marijuana-infused products” does 
not include useable marijuana. 

 
(8) “Marijuana processing facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

process, package, and label usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale 
at wholesale to marijuana retailers.  A marijuana processing facility shall not be a home 
occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 
19.34. 

 
(9) “Marijuana processor” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

process marijuana into useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products, package and 
label useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale in retail outlets, and 
sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products at wholesale to marijuana 
retailers. 

 
(10) “Marijuana producer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

produce and sell marijuana at wholesale to marijuana processors and other marijuana 
producers. 

 
(11) “Marijuana production facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington 

to produce marijuana for sale at wholesale to marijuana processor licensees and to 
other marijuana producers. A marijuana production facility shall not be a home 
occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 
19.34. 

 
(12) “Marijuana retailer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products in a retail outlet. 

57



 
(13) “Marijuana retail facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

sell only usable marijuana, marijuana-infused products and marijuana paraphernalia 
to persons twenty-one years of age and older. A marijuana retail facility shall not be 
a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under 
OHMC 19.34. 

 
(14) “Playground” means a public outdoor recreation area for children, usually equipped 

with swings, slides, and other playground equipment, owned and/or managed by a 
city, county, state, or federal government. 

 
(15) “Public park” means an area of land for the enjoyment of the public, having facilities 

for rest and/or recreation, such as a baseball diamond or basketball court, owned and/or 
managed by a city, county, state, federal government, or metropolitan park district. 
Public park does not include trails. 

 
(16) “Public transit center” means a facility located outside of the public right of way that is 

owned and managed by a transit agency or city, county, state, or federal government for 
the express purpose of staging people and vehicles where several bus or other transit 
routes converge.  They serve as efficient hubs to allow bus riders from various 
locations to assemble at a central point to take advantage of express trips or other route 
to route transfers. 

 
(17) “Recreation center or facility” means a supervised center that provides a broad range of 

activities and events intended primarily for use by persons under twenty-one years of 
age, owned and/or managed by a charitable nonprofit organization, city, county, state, or 
federal government.   

 
(18) “Retail outlet” means a location licensed by the State Liquor Control Board for the retail 

sale of usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products. 
 
(19) “Secondary school” means a high and/or middle school:  A school for students who have 

completed their primary education, usually attended by children in grades seven to twelve 
and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of public instruction. 

 
(20) “Useable marijuana” means dried marijuana flowers. The term “usable marijuana” does not 

include marijuana-infused products. 
  
Section Four. 

58



There is hereby added new Section 19.22.030 entitled “Locations Allowed” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) State licensed marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate in the city 

pursuant to the following restrictions: 
 
 (a) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors must comply with all requirements 

 of state law and the Washington State Liquor Control Board’s regulations. 
 (b) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate only in the Planned  

 Industrial Park or Industrial district(s). 
 (c) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate on a site or in a 

building in which non-conforming production or processing uses have been 
established in any zone other than the Planned Industrial Park or Industrial 
district(s). 

 (d) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not operate as an accessory 
 to a primary use or as a home occupation. 

 (e) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate within one 
 thousand feet of the perimeter of the grounds of any elementary or secondary 
 school, playground, recreation center or facility, child care center, public park, 
 public transit center, or library, or any game arcade venue featuring primarily 
 video games, simulators, and/or other amusement devices where persons under 
 twenty-one years of age are not restricted.  The distance shall be measured as 
 the shortest straight line distance from the property line of the proposed 
 building/business location to the property line of the entities listed above. 

 
(2) State licensed marijuana retailers may locate in the city pursuant to the following 

restrictions: 
 
 (a) Marijuana retailers must comply with all requirements of state law and the 

 Washington State Liquor control Board’s regulations. 
 (b) Marijuana retailers may locate only in the C-4 and Industrial district(s). 
 (c) Marijuana retailers shall not locate in a building in which non-conforming retail 

uses have been established in any residential or office zone. 
 (e) Marijuana retailers shall not operate as an accessory to a primary use or as a home 

 occupation. 
 (f) Marijuana retailers shall not locate within one thousand feet of the perimeter of 

the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, playground, recreation 
center or facility, child care center, public park, public transit center, or library, 
or any game arcade venue featuring primarily video games, simulators, and/or 
other amusement devices where persons under twenty-one years of age are not 

59



restricted.  The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line distance 
from the property line of the proposed building/business location to the property 
line of the entities listed above. 

 
Section Five. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Development Standards” to the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) Marijuana retail, processing and production facilities.  In addition to the standards of the 

underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code regulations, all state-
licensed marijuana facilities shall meet the following development standards: 

 (a) All facilities must be state-licensed and comply with all of the standards for 
 state licensed marijuana facilities. 

 (b) No marijuana facility shall be allowed as a home occupation. 
 (c) The definitions set forth in RCW 69.50.101-.102, WAC 314-55-010 and OHMC 
  Section 19.22.020 shall control.  
 (d) Location. 
  (i) No more than one facility shall be located on a single parcel. 

(ii) Marijuana retail and processing facilities shall be located fully within a  
 permanent structure designed to comply with the city building code and  
 constructed under a building and/or tenant improvement permit from the 
city  regardless of the size or configuration of the structure. 
(iii) Marijuana production facilities shall be located: 

(A) Within a permanent, fully enclosed structure designed to comply 
with the city building code and constructed under a building 
and/or a tenant improvement permit from the city regardless of the 
size or configuration of the structure; or 

(B) In non-rigid greenhouses, other structures, or an expanse of open 
or clear ground fully enclosed by a physical barrier enclosed by a 
sight obscuring wall or fence eight (8) feet high. 

(iv) Marijuana facilities shall not be located in a mobile structure or vehicle. 
(v) No state-licensed marijuana facility shall be located within 1,000 feet of 

the perimeter of the parcel on which any of the entities listed below are 
located. The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line 
distance from property line of the proposed building/business location to 
the property line of the entities listed below. 
(A) Elementary or secondary school (public or private); 
(B) Playground; 
(C) Recreation center or facility; 
(D) Child care center; 

60



(E) Public park; 
(F) Public transit center; 
(G) Library; 
(H) Any game arcade venue featuring primarily video games, 

simulators, and/or other amusement devices where persons under 
twenty-one years of age are not restricted. 

(vi) No state-licensed marijuana retail facility shall be located within 1,000 feet 
of the perimeter of a parcel on which a state-licensed marijuana 
production or processing facility is located. The distance shall be measured 
as the shortest straight line distance from property line of the marijuana 
retail facility to the property line of the marijuana production or 
processing facility. 

(e) No production, processing or delivery of marijuana may be visible to the public 
 nor may it be visible through windows. 
(f) Marijuana retail uses shall not include drive-throughs, exterior, or off-site sales. 
(g) All fertilizers, chemicals, gases and hazardous materials shall be handled in 

compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations.  No 
fertilizers, chemicals, gases or hazardous materials shall be allowed to enter either 
a sanitary sewer or a  stormwater sewer system nor be released into the 
atmosphere outside of the structure where the facility is located. 

(h) No odors r e s u l t i n g  f r o m  t he  u se  o f  t h o s e  s u b s t a nc e s  n o t e d  i n  
1 9 . 2 2 . 0 4 0 ( 1 ) ( g )  o r  f r o m  t h e  a c t i v i t i e s  c o n d uc t e d  w i t h i n  t he  
s t r u c t u r e  shall be allowed to migrate beyond the interior portion of the 
structure where a marijuana facility is located. 

(i) A City of Oak Harbor business license pursuant to Chapter 5.03 OHMC and a 
state license pursuant to Chapter 314-55 WAC shall be obtained prior to the start 
of operations of the facility. 

(j) All facilities shall comply with Chapter 19.27 RCW, State Building Code Act 
a n d  T i t l e  17  B uildings. Appropriate permits shall be obtained for all changes 
of use, tenant improvements, mechanical system improvements, electrical 
upgrades and similar work. 

 
Section Five. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Non-conforming Uses” to the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana producer, marijuana processor, or 

marijuana retailer as those terms are defined in this ordinance, that was engaged in that 
activity prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have been a legally 
established use under the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code and that use shall 
not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status. 

61



 
Section Six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Seven.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 4th day of February 2014. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
    
Published: _______________ 

62



City Council 

Agenda Bills 

& 

Minutes 

September 3, 2013 

& 

October 1, 2013 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



Regular Meeting Minutes –September 3, 2013 – Page 4 

Motion:    Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance 1667.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Severns and carried unanimously. 

 
Ordinance 1666:  Relating to a Moratorium on Medical Marijuana and Setting a Public Hearing 
for October 1, 2013 
Community and Economic Development Director Steve Powers provided the staff report. 
 
Ordinance 1666  An Interim Ordinance of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, Adopting 

a Moratorium on the Establishment of Medical Marijuana Dispensa-
ries, Collective Gardens and the Licensing and Permitting Thereof; 
Defining “Medical Marijuana Dispensary”; Providing for a Public Hear-
ing; Referring the Matter to the Planning Commission for Review; Es-
tablishing an Effective Date; and Providing that the Moratorium, Un-
less Extended, Will Sunset Within Six (6) Months of the Date of Adop-
tion 

  
Ordinance 1665  An Ordinance of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, Adopting a Six 

(6) Month Moratorium Within the City of Oak Harbor on the Establish-
ment, Siting, Location, Permitting, Licensing or Operation of Marijuana 
Cultivation, Production of Marijuana Derivatives, and the Sale of Mari-
juana or Marijuana Derivatives or any other Activities Asserted to be 
Authorized or Actually Authorized Under Washington State Initiative 
No. 502 or any Other Laws of the State of Washington and Setting a 
Date for a Public Hearing on the Moratorium, Adopting a Work Plan, 
Providing for Severability; and Establishing an Effective Date 

 
Mr. Powers responded to questions from Council about regulations related to land use impacts 
and other classification criteria.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance 1665. The motion was seconded 

by Councilmember Munns and carried unanimously. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance 1666. The motion was seconded 

by Councilmember Sevens and carried unanimously. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Chamber of Commerce Tourism Services Agreement 
City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort provided the staff report.  
 
Kathy Reed, Executive Director of the Chamber, spoke in support. 
 
Jill Johnson, previous Executive Director, also spoke in support stating the funds are generated 
from the 2% Lodging Tax, not the General Fund or Sales Tax. 
 
Councilmember Munns suggested the comparison of cities receiving lodging tax funds also 
include military communities such as Everett, Bremerton and Silverdale. 
 
Councilmember Almberg discussed a common strategy for attracting residents as the new 
squadrons arrive.  
 

74



75



City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

 

1).docx

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

 

7c  I-502 Moratorium.dotx

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



Regular Meeting Minutes – October 1, 2013 – Page 4 

Councilmembers spoke in support of the ordinance although there was concern with special 
events in Fort Nugent Park where the majority of youth athletic activities are held. 
 
Councilmember Paggao asked what conditions Council would be approving. 
 
Brian Jones, Vice President of the Oak Harbor Youth Football League, recommended prohibit-
ing events that coincide with youth events, in addition to asking participants to turn over their car 
keys in an effort to monitor alcohol limits. 
 
Councilmember Paggao stated he would like to see standard conditions included on the appli-
cation for a special event. 
 
Councilmember Campbell spoke in opposition. 
 
Councilmember Munns asked Captain Sterkel to address enforcement concerns. 
 
Captain Sterkel responded that the Washington State Liquor Control Board handles the liquor 
permit including the background checks and they also provide undercover work. He believes the 
WSLCB combined with Council approval is sufficient. They’ve had zero arrests in the City.  
  
Ordinance 1669 An Ordinance of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington Amending 

5.50.020 (6), Repealing Chapters 6.12, “Conduct in Parks and Play-
grounds,” and 6.14, “Park Code,” of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, 
and Adopting a New Consolidated Chapter 6.12, Parks Code 

 
Motion: Councilmember Paggao moved to adopt Ordinance 1669 deleting “Fort Nugent 

Park”.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Almberg.  
 
Councilmember Paggao spoke in support of the amendment to delete Fort Nugent Park. 
 
Council and staff discussed organizations who would be interested in utilizing Fort Nugent Park 
and the limitations on playground access during an event. 
 
Councilmember Munns called for the question. 
 
The motion to adopt Ordinance 1669, as amended, carried 6 to 1; Campbell opposed. 
 
Ordinance 1666:  Relating to Medical Marijuana Moratorium 
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the staff report and stated action is nec-
essary following the public hearing to adopt the Findings and Conclusions in support of Ordi-
nance 1666.  
 
Mayor Dudley opened the public hearing at 7:49 p.m.   
 
Lucas Jushinski spoke in support stating his medical cannabis access point located in Freeland 
has been in business almost two years without any problems or complaints. 
 
The public hearing closed at 7:53 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers spoke in support of the moratorium and expressed the need to get the regula-
tions in place within the 6-month timeframe. 

92



Regular Meeting Minutes – October 1, 2013 – Page 5 

Motion:    Councilmember Munns moved to adopt the Findings of Fact in support of Ordinance 
1666.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Campbell and carried unani-
mously. 

 
Ordinance 1665:  Relating to Initiative 502 Moratorium 
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the staff report.   
 
Mayor Dudley opened the public hearing at 8:04 p.m.  No testimony was provided and the hear-
ing was closed. 
 
In response to questions from Councilmember Hizon, Mr. Powers explained questions about 
locations were premature and that a recommendation would come from the Planning Commis-
sion. 
 
Councilmembers Severns and Servatius indicated public input has been positive. 
 
City Attorney Grant Weed related a Task Force has been formed to reconcile the two statutes 
and merge the laws.  
 
The public hearing closed at 8:10 p.m. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
SPIN Café/Permaculture Food Forest 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Councilmembers spoke in support. 
 
Councilmember Munns suggested delivering extra produce to the HELP House. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize the Mayor to sign an agreement with 

SPIN Café for the development of a Permaculture food forest at 658 Bayshore Drive, 
adjacent to Hal Ramaley Park, with the understanding that the site will remain open 
to the public, that SPIN Café will not use the site as a for-profit enterprise, and that if 
the City needs to utilize the property for another purpose the Permaculture food for-
est may be removed. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Servatius and 
carried unanimously. 

 
Settlement Agreement with Frontier Communications Northwest, Inc. 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report. 
 
Skip Pohtilla asked if the refund is for taxes paid and whether or not it’s returned to the consum-
er. 
 
Staff clarified the claims made by AT&T and Verizon were for taxes overpaid and that weren’t 
owed. At the time the utility carrier was paying the tax, the Supreme Court ruled the DSL feature 
to be non-taxable.  
 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to approve and authorize the Mayor to sign the 

Settlement Agreement with Frontier Communications Northwest, Inc. The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Munns and carried unanimously. 

93



Planning Commission 

 

Agenda Bills  

& 

Minutes 

October 22, 2013 

 

November 26, 2013 

 

December 10, 2013 

 

January 28, 2014 

94



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

 Date: October 22, 2013  

 Subject: Marijuana Related Uses – Code 

Amendment Project 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

PURPOSE 

This report presents information and materials pertaining to the marijuana related uses code 

amendment project. 

BACKGROUND 

The Washington State Legislature, during its 2011 Legislative Session, adopted Engrossed 

Second Substitute Bill 5073 (“E2SSB 5073”), which was adopted with a partial veto of the 

Governor, became effective July 22, 2011, and amended RCW 69.51A and renamed the Medical 

Use of Marijuana Act to the “Washington State Medical Use of Cannabis Act.”  At this time the 

City of Oak Harbor does not have specific regulations addressing the facilities or uses allowed 

under RCW 69.51A, other than the requirement for a general business license.  To respond to 

this situation, staff recommended the City Council impose a moratorium to preserve the status 

quo as necessary, until the City can study, draft, hold public hearings and adopt the appropriate 

land use and/or licensing regulations to address these new uses.  The Council accepted that 

recommendation and on September 3, 2013 approved Ordinance No. 1666 (Attachment 1) 

imposing a six-month moratorium. 

Initiative Measure No. 502 (I-502) was approved by Washington State votes on November 6, 

2012.  Its passage purported to legalize the production, sale and use of marijuana products 

purchased from State licensed stores for adults age twenty-one and over.  As in the case above, 

the City does not have specific regulations addressing the facilities or uses identified in I-502, 

other than the requirement for a general business license.  Staff also recommended the City 

Council impose a moratorium to preserve the status quo as necessary, until the State Liquor 

Control Board definitively acts to establish a final and complete set of rules for the licensing of 

all of the new marijuana facilities and uses identified in I-502, and until the City can study, draft, 

hold public hearings and adopt the appropriate land use and/or licensing regulations to address 

these new uses.  The Council accepted that recommendation and on September 3, 2013 approved 

Ordinance No. 1665 (Attachment 2) imposing a six month moratorium.   

RCW 36.70A.390 allows cities to adopt a moratorium without first conducting a public hearing 

so long as one is conducted within 60 days of the adoption of the moratorium.  The public 

hearing on both of these ordinances was held before the City Council on October 1, 2013.  At the 

conclusion of the public hearings the Council left the moratoriums in place.  With their approval 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

95



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

of the moratorium ordinances, the City forwarded this matter to the Planning Commission for 

your review and recommendation. 

DISCUSSION 

It is necessary for the City to draft code to regulate marijuana related uses in order to respond to 

the adoption of certain State laws.  The ‘whereas’ statements of Ordinance Nos. 1665 and 1666 

provide a summary of the topics or issues associated with Chapter 69.51A RCW (medical 

marijuana) and I-502 (recreational marijuana).  While each piece of State legislation is unique, 

they both clearly authorize cities to adopt and enforce zoning requirements for these marijuana 

related uses.  For medical marijuana the central zoning issues are the siting of collective gardens 

and medical marijuana dispensaries.  For recreational marijuana the central zoning issues are the 

siting of facilities for the production, processing and retail sales of marijuana or marijuana 

products. 

The amendments adopted to State law in 2011 for medical marijuana did not establish a State 

licensing scheme.  However, the same is not true for I-502 passed by Washington voters in 2012.  

I-502 requires the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) to establish the rules necessary 

to license the producers, processers and retailers of marijuana and marijuana related products.  

The LCB has determined that one (1) retail license may be issued in Oak Harbor.  One of the key 

provisions of I-502 (from a zoning regulation standpoint) specifies that the facilities must be at 

least 1,000 feet from elementary and secondary schools, playgrounds, recreation centers, day 

cares, parks, transit centers, libraries and arcades. 

Staff has prepared a preliminary map that locates all of the sensitive land uses listed above and 

then applies the 1,000 foot buffer to each.  Areas not covered by the buffer are in theory available 

for the siting of the facilities authorized by State law, subject to the underlying zoning supporting 

such a use.  Please note this map is preliminary and is only intended to facilitate a discussion 

with the Planning Commission.  It does not represent any form of staff recommendation.   

Since the moratorium ordinances may only be in effect for six months, unless extended by the 

City Council, staff has prepared a tentative schedule that completes this code amendment project 

within that timeframe.  The tentative schedule is as follows: 

10/22/13 Planning Commission  Background briefing and discussion 

11/26/13 Planning Commission  Introduce draft code; open public hearing 

12/10/13 Planning Commission  Close public hearing; make recommendation 

1/22/14 City Council (workshop) Briefing on PC work and recommendation  

2/4/14 City Council  Consider draft ordinance 

2/118/14 City Council  Consider draft ordinance (if necessary) 

96



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

The schedule may of course be modified to fit the needs of the community, Planning 

Commission and City Council. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

A significant amount of information is available on these subjects, with more becoming available 

almost on a daily basis.  Staff has found that two websites are particularly helpful when 

researching these topics: Municipal Research and Services Center of Washington (MRSC) and 

the Washington State Liquor Control Board.  Should the Commission wish to review this 

information for yourself, the following links are provided for your use: 

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/MedMariReg.aspx 

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/502/recmarijuana.aspx 

http://liq.wa.gov/marijuana/I-502 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Provide feedback to staff on the preliminary map and locations for  marijuana related uses

within Oak Harbor

 Accept public comment

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Ordinance No. 1666

2. Ordinance No. 1665

3. Preliminary map depicting I-502 sensitive land uses and the 1,000 foot buffers

97

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/MedMariReg.aspx
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/MedMariReg.aspx
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/502/recmarijuana.aspx
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/502/recmarijuana.aspx
http://liq.wa.gov/marijuana/I-502
http://liq.wa.gov/marijuana/I-502


98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



SW FRANKLIN

CT

SW 13THCT.

S
W

 IN
G

L
E

S
ID

E
C

T
.

S
W

K
IT

T
IT

A
S

C
T

.

SW LOOKING
GLASS  LOOP

S
W

T
O

U
R

IS
T

S
T

.

N
W

K
IT

S
A

P
S

T
.

NW
LANYARDLOOP

N
W

Q
U

E
S

T
S

T
.

N
E

M
E

E
T

E
R

L
N

.

N
E

N
E

T
L

A
N

L
N

.

N
E

P
A

T
R

IC
K

L
N

.

NE SUMNER
DR.

NE SEALTH PL.

N
E

N
A

S
H

T
E

R
.

McKINNON  DR.

T
IM

A
R

U
  L

N
.

SWANTOWN  RD.

CAREFREE  P
L.

VIC
TO

RIA
 W

AY

M
O

N
TIC

ELLO
  W

AY

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
  L

O
O

P

L
O

E
R

L
A

N
D

  L
N

.

HIGHLAND  DR.

H
E

M
E

N
W

A
Y

  P
L

.

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.  
E

A
S

T

R
ID

G
E

V
IE

W
  D

R
.

ORCHARD  LOOP

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.  
E

A
S

T

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.

NW  5TH  AVE.

N
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

CROSBY  RD.

C
R

O
S

B
Y

  R
D

.

S
W

 L
A

N
S

D
A

L
E

  S
T

.

NW  2ND  AVE.

NW KITSAP  TERR.

N
W

 O
U

T
R

IG
G

E
R

  L
O

O
P

N
W

  R
O

E
D

E
R

  D
R

.

SW LESCHI  DR.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

SW PONSTEEN  D
R.

SW
 ROEDER  DR.

SW
ANTOW

N  RD.

D
IX

IE
  L

N
.

D
A

V
ID

  L
N

.

COYOTE  WAY

McGUIRE  PL.

PINECONE  PL.

WILDBERRY  LN.

DIXIE  LN.DAVID  LN.

CROSBY  RD.

C
R

O
S

B
Y

  R
D

.

NW CROSBY AVE.

A
IR

L
IN

E
  W

A
Y

SW LOERLAND  DR.

NW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 O
U

T
R

IG
G

E
R

  L
O

O
P

SW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 L
A

T
E

E
N

  S
T

.

N
W

 M
IZ

Z
E

N
  D

R
.

NW  2ND  AVE.
NW  2ND  AVE.

NW  1ST  AVE. NW  1ST  AVE.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE. W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

SW  2ND  AVE.

SW  1ST  AVE.

SW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.

N
W

 D
E

L
T

A
  C

T
.

N
W

 C
A

P
T

A
IN

 C
T

N
W

 B
O

S
U

N
  S

T
.

SW  1ST  AVE.

S
W

 O
V

E
R

W
A

Y
 S

T
.

NW 7TH   AVE.

COLUMBIA  DR.1
0

0
  N

W
  S

T
.

NW COLUMBIA  DR. N
W

 A
T

A
L

A
N

T
A

  W
A

Y

NW CALISTA  CT.

E
N

S
IG

N
  D

R
.

F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.

FAIRHAVEN  DR.

NW 3RD  AVE.

ENSIGN  DR.

NW 7TH   AVE.

NW 3RD  AVE.

C
T

.

NW  9TH  PL.

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
D

E
C

K
  L

O
O

P

NW  8TH  AVE.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NW  REDWING  DR.

NW  14TH  WAY

N
W

  K
A

T
H

L
E

E
N

  D
R

.

NW  REDWING  DR.

N
W

 E
L

W
H

A
  C

T
.

N
W

 C
A

M
E

L
L

A
  L

O
O

P

NW  CHERRY HILL  LOOP

NW 13TH  CT.

NW  12TH  LOOP

N
W

 A
L

M
O

N
D

  L
O

O
P

NW HYAK  DR.

NW DORY  DR.
NW ILLAHEE  DR.

NW 8TH   AVE.

CLIPPER  DR.

NW 10TH   AVE.

A
N

C
H

O
R

  D
R

.CATHLAMET  DR.

N
W

 IS
SA

Q
U

A
H

  S
T.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NW
 DORY  DR.

NW HIYU  DR.

E
L

W
H

A
  S

T
.

N
W

 F
R

IG
A

T
E

  S
T

.

N
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.

N
W

 E
L

L
IS

  W
A

Y

H
ARVEST  D

R.

NE  4TH  AVE.

N
E

 IZ
E

T
T

  S
T

.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

N
E

 FA
B

E
R

  S
T

.

N
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.

NW COLUMBIA  DR.

N
E

 E
R

N
S

T
  S

T
.

NE  7TH  AVE.

NE  4TH  AVE.
NE  4TH  AVE.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

NE  7TH  AVE.

N
E

 IZ
E

T
T

  S
T

.

NE  6TH  AVE.

NE  7TH  CT.

NE  6TH  AVE.

NE  5TH  AVE.
NE  5TH  AVE.

NE  3RD  AVE.

NE  2ND  AVE.

NE 1ST  AVE.

N
E

 K
E

T
T

L
E

  S
T

.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

N
E

 N
O

O
N

A
N

  L
O

O
P

N
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.

SE  2ND  CT.

S
E

 P
A

S
E

K
  S

T
.

N
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.

NE  3RD  AVE.

NE  10TH   PL.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  S

T
.

N
E

  C
O

R
D

E
R

O
  P

L
.

N
E

  C
O

R
D

E
R

O
  P

L
.N
E

  B
IG

 B
E

R
R

Y
  L

O
O

P

EASY  ST.

K
O

E
T

JE
  R

D
.

NE  8TH  AVE.

N
E

 M
U

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

NARROW
S  AVE.

NE  7TH  PL.

NE  8TH  AVE.

NE  9TH  AVE.

NE  10TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

NE  10TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

O
`L

EARY  S
T.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

N
E

 G
O

L
D

IE
 S

T
.

N
E

 Q
U

E
E

T
S

  S
T

.

N
W

DR.

N
E

 T
A

F
T

S
O

N
  S

T
.

Q
U

IL
L

 T
E

R

CRESCENT  HARBOR  RD.

SE  BARRINGTON  DR.

SE  11TH  AVE.

S
E

 C
IT

Y
 B

E
A

C
H

  S
T

.

SE FIDALGO  AVE.

S
. B

E
E

K
S

M
A

 D
R

.

SE BAYSHORE  DR.

S
E

 IL
W

A
C

O
 A

L
L

E
Y

S
E

 E
LY  S

T.

S
E

 E
L

Y
  S

T
.

SE CABO
T  DR.

SE  4TH  AVE.

SE  8TH  AVE.

SE  6TH  AVE.

SE  3RD  AVE.

S
E

 F
IS

H
E

R
  C

T
.

SE  5TH  AVE.

SE  2ND  AVE.

S
E

 D
O

C
K

  S
T

.

SE  8TH  AVE.

S
E

 G
L

E
N

C
O

E
  S

T
.

SE  3RD  AVE.S
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.

SE  9TH  AVE.
S

E
 J

E
N

S
E

N
  S

T
.

S
E

 IR
E

L
A

N
D

  S
T

.

S
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SE  6TH  AVE.

SE  10TH  AVE.

S
E

 J
E

R
O

M
E

  S
T

.
S

E
 J

E
R

O
M

E
  S

T
.

S
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.
S

E
 O

`L
E

A
R

Y
  S

T
.

S
E

 M
A

Y
L

O
R

  S
T

.

S
E

 N
E

IL
  S

T
.

S
E

 P
A

S
E

K
  S

T
.

S
E

 Q
U

A
K

E
R

  S
T

.

B
A

Y
M

O
N

T
  D

R
.

OAKMONT  LN.

GLENMONT  CT.

S
W

  O
L

IV
E

  S
T

.

SW  STREMLER  DR.

Q
U

IN
C

E
  S

T
.

SW  17TH  AVE.

SW  16TH  AVE.

N
E

IN
H

U
IS

  S
T

.

FIRESIDE  LN.CROSSW
OODS  C

IR
.

JUNIPER TULIP  LN.

N
O

R
M

A
N

  D
R

.LATO  DR.

K
LI

C
K

IT
AT  T

ER.

S
W

 K
A

L
E

E
T

O
N

CROSSW
OODS  CIR.

CT.

LOOP

H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

ID
A

P
L

.

SW
 SW

ANTOW
N  RD.

SW  19TH  CT.
S. B

EEKSMA  D
R.

SW  B
AYSHORE  D

R.SW  KIMBALL  DR.

SW  BARRINGTON  DR.

S
W

 IS
L

A
N

D
E

R
  L

N
.

SW 12TH

SW  11TH  CT.

S
W

  E
R

IE
  S

T
.

B
A

R
L

O
W

  S
T

.

B
O

W
M

E
R

  S
T

.

CT.

S
W

 K
A

L
A

M
A

  L
O

O
P

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW  9TH  AVE.

SW  8TH  AVE.

SW QUINAULT  ST.

S
W

  R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
  D

R
.

S
W

  P
U

F
F

IN
  S

T
.

S
W

  O
T

T
E

R
C

R
E

S
T

  S
T

.

S
W

  O
R

C
A

S
  S

T
.

SW  7TH  AVE.

S
W

  Q
U

IL
C

E
N

E
  L

N
.

S
W

 M
c

C
R

O
H

A
N

  S
T

.

S
W

 L
O

N
D

O
N

  T
E

R
.

S
W

 K
IN

G
M

A
  C

T
.

S
W

 IN
G

LE
W

O
O

D
  L

N
.

S
W

 J
U

D
S

O
N

  D
R

.

SW  6TH  AVE.

S
W

 M
U

Z
Z

A
L

L
  S

T
.

SW  4TH

SW  4TH  AVE.

S
W

 K
IR

K
  L

N
.

SW JUDSON  DR.

SW
 RO

BERTSO
N

  DR.

SW PUTNAM  DR.

SW PERIWINKLE  LN.

SW  2ND  CT.

S
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

CT.

SW MUZZALL  ST.

SW  BARRINGTON  DR.

SW  8TH  AVE.

S
W

 D
Y

E
R

  S
T

.

SW HARRIER  CIR.

S
W

 H
A

R
R

IE
R

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW
 FLEET  ST.

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW  4TH  AVE.

SW  3RD  AVE.

SW  8TH  AVE.

S
W

 E
R

IE
  S

T
.

SW ECHO  LOOP

E
R

IE
  S

T
.

SW ERIE  CIR.

SW  3RD  AVE.

S
W

 F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.
S

W
 F

A
IR

H
A

V
E

N
  D

R
.

SW  6TH  AVE.
SW  6TH  AVE.

SW  6TH  AVE.

SW CASTILIAN  DR.

S
T

.

W
A

L
S

E
R

  L
N

.

LIN
K

S  W
A

Y

WEDGEWOOD  LN.

FORT NUGENT  AVE.

INDEPENDANCE

COLONIA
L  W

AY

HERIT
AGE  W

AY

SW
 V

IC
TO

RY S
T.

SW
  V

AN
G

ARD
  S

T.

SW
  W

IN
D

SO
R

  S
T.

SW
  X

A
VIE

R
  D

R
.

SW  WINCHESTER  ST.

S
W

  W
A

T
E

R
S

ID
E

  C
T

.

SW  ROCK  ROSE  DR.

S
W

  U
L

S
S

E
S

S
W

  T
A

H
O

E
  S

T
.

S
W

  S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
  C

T
.

S
W

  U
N

IO
N

 S
T

.

CT.

LIBERTY  LN.

S
W

  R
O

C
K

  R
O

S
E

 D
R

.

F
A

IR
W

A
Y

  L
N

.

S
H

A
M

R
O

C
K

  L
N

.

WIELDRAAYER  RD.

SUNNYSIDE

TH
O

R
N

B
E

R
R

Y 
 D

R
.

SW FAIRVUE  PL.

PL.

S
W

 S
T

R
O

O
P

S
  S

T
.

PUTNAM  DR.

SUNNYSIDE  AVE.

AVE.

SW
 T

H
O

R
N

B
ER

R
Y 

 D
R

.

SW ROBERTSON  D
R.

ORCHARD  LOOP

M
O

N
TIC

ELLO
  W

AY

FAIRWAY  LN.

M
U

L
L

IG
A

N
W

A
Y

SW
 SW

ANTOW
N  RD.

B
O

U
L

D
E

R
  M

E
A

D
O

W
  L

N
.

DYER  RD.

CARLTON  WAY

CARLTON  WAY

MISTY  LN.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.

CARLTON  WAY

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.

NAPOLEON  DR.

C
O

N
IF

E
R

  L
N

.

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
  D

R
.

MISTY  LN.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.
B

O
O

N
  R

D
.

B
O

N
A

P
A

R
TE

  L
N

.

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

 L
N

.

B
O

N
A

P
A

R
T

E
  L

N
.

WATERLOO  RD.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

G
R

E
A

T
V

IE
W

  P
L

.
G

R
IE

N
T

JE
S

  L
N

.

SC
EN

IC
  H

EIG
H

TS  ST.

WALKER  HEIGHTS  PL.

RIDGEWAY  DR.

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

  S
T

.

S
W

  R
O

S
A

R
IO

  P
L

.

S
W

 V
IS

IT
  P

A
R

K
  D

R
.

VISTA  CIR.

CHULA

KIWI  ACRES  LN.

SW 24TH AVE.

VIS
TA  L

N.

S
W

 R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y
  D

R
.

WATERLOO  RD.

CAPITAL  ST.

TALON  LOOP

S
W

  F
R

E
U

N
D

  S
T

.

D
A

W
N

EAGLE  VISTA  AVE.

POPPY'S  PL.

SW
 D

IL
LARD  L

N
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  S

T
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  S

T
.

S
W

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

  D
R

.

VIEW

C
R

IC
K

ET

ST.H
A

R
B

O
R

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  R

D
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  R

D
.

BONNIE  VIEW  ACRES  RD.

C
A

N
T

E
B

U
R

Y
  L

N
.

R
A

IN
IE

R
  L

N
.

E
A

G
L

E
  C

R
E

S
T

  D
R

.

STARWANA
DUPONT  RD.

CT.

R
A

IN
IE

R
  L

N
.

CANTEBURY  LN.

B
O

N
N

IE
  V

IE
W

  A
C

R
E

S
  R

D
.

BONNIE  VIEW  ACRES  RD.

SCENIC ESTATES  LN.

M
O

N
R

O
E

  L
A

N
D

IN
G

  R
D

.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

JAYDEE  WAY

BLUEWATER  LN.

BLUEWATER  LN.

M
O

N
R

O
E

  L
A

N
D

IN
G

  R
D

.

MILLER  RD.

MILLER  RD.

A
P

E
N

A
  D

R
.

H
A

S
T

IE
  L

A
K

E
  R

D
.

WINDY  RIDGE  RD.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.
B

O
O

N
  R

D
.

HASTIE  LAKE  RD.

M
A

T
U

R
E

  V
IE

W
  L

N
.

HASTIE  LAKE  RD.

FERN  PL.

M
O

SS  LN
.

SWANTOWN  RD.

NE  16TH  AVE.

CASE  RD. CASE  RD.

FAKKEMA  RD.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

OAK  ST.

ERIN  PARK  RD.

P
A

IN
T

E
R

S
  W

A
Y

G
O

L
D

IE
  S

T
.

N
E G

O
LD

IE ST.
NE 21ST CT.

MOBIUS  LOOP

INDUSTRIAL  AVE.

N
E

 H
A

L
Y

A
R

D
 L

N
.

G
O

L
D

IE
  R

D
.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

SCHAY  RD.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

KIMS  WAY

GUN  CLUB  RD.

RED  ROBIN  LN.

QUAIL  LN.

R
IF

E
  R

D
.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

CLOVER  VALLEY  RD.

YATES  RD.

STARFLOWER  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.
AULT  FIELD  RD.

S
U

M
M

IT
  B

L
V

D
.

ARWIN  DR.

YVONNE  AVE.

REBECCA  LN.

LINDA  LN.

H
A

W
K

S
  P

R
A

IR
IE

  R
D

.

S
U

M
M

IT
  B

L
V

D
.

G
O

L
F

  C
O

U
R

S
E

  R
D

.

A
L

P
IN

E
  D

R
.

SUNSET  VIEW  PL.

A
L

P
IN

E
  D

R
.

G
O

L
F

  C
O

U
R

S
E

  R
D

.

CLOVER  VALLEY  RD.

T
H

U
N

D
E

R
  L

N
.

DUFFERS  LN.

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
  L

N
.

O
L

D
  G

O
L

D
IE

  R
D

.

COUNTY  ROAD  301

G
O

L
D

IE
  R

D
.

ST.

L
A

N
G

E

W
H

IT
N

E
Y

  D
R

.

W
  G

R
E

E
N

  V
A

L
L

E
Y

  R
D

.

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

ST
A

TE
 R

O
U

TE
 2

0

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE ROUTE 20

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

S
W

 R
O

O
D

Z
A

N
T

 S
T

.

NW  12TH  CT.

S
W

S
IL

V
E

R
B

E
R

R
Y 

ST
.

C
A

S
H

MERE

TER.

GREENW
OOD ST.

SPARROW CIR.

PATRIOT WAY

S
W

 U
P

LA
N

D
 C

T.

SW LOPEZ DR.

S
W

  B
A

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N
  D

R
.

N
E

 M
E

L
R

O
S

E
 D

R
.

N
E

 R
O

N
H

A
A

R
 S

T
.

E
B

B
T

ID
E

N
W

 C
LI

P
P

E
R

 D
R

.

IL
L

A
H

E
E

  D
R

.

NW HASLO LP.
N

W
 F

A
L

L
S

 C
R

E
E

K
 L

O
O

P

NW 11TH AVE.

N
W

 E
L

L
Y

 P
L

.

KATHLEEN

NW LOLA TER.

HIGHLAND  DR.C
R

E
S

T
V

IE
W

 P
L.

E. PIONEER  WAY

E. PIONEER  WAY

NE  16TH  AVE.

S
W

 F
A

IR
W

A
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 D
R

.

S
W

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 C
O

U
R

T

SW FAIRWAY POINT DR.

S
W

 C
O

O
P

E
R

 W
A

Y

S
W

 D
O

W
N

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y

SW BERWICK DR.

SW 18TH AVE.

S
W

 B
E

R
W

IC
K

 D
R

.

S
W

 C
A

R
N

E
G

IE
 S

T
.

S
W

 J
U

D
S

O
N

  D
R

.
NE  11TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

NE RIKSEN W
AY

S
E

 R
E

G
A

T
T

A
  D

R
.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

E. PIONEER  WAY

AULT  FIELD  RD.

N
W

  J
IB

 S
T

.

NE 24TH LN

N
W

 S
C

E
N

IC
 V

IS
T

A
 S

T
.

N
W

 U
P

S
A

LA
 D

R
.

NW 9TH AVE.

NW  5TH  AVE. N
W

 O
X

F
O

R
D

 S
T

.

NW  6TH  AVE.

A
IR

L
IN

E
  W

A
Y

N
W

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

O
R

 L
P

.

SW 24TH AVE.

SW 29TH PL.

SW  20TH  CT.

S
W

 M
U

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 P
L

.

BARRINGTON
SW

D
R

.

S
W

 F
O

U
N

D
E

R
S

 D
R

.

S
E

 A
S

T
E

L
 S

T
.

S
E

 E
L

Y
  S

T
.

N
W

 L
O

F
T

O
N

 L
P

NW LONGVIEW 

D
R

.

N
E

 B
A

R
R

O
N

 D
R

.

N
W

   
  P

R
O

W
 S

T
.

N
W

   
  K

E
Y

 S
T

.

S
E

 C
A

S
T

L
E

P
A

R
K

 C
T

.

S
W

 H
A

T
H

A
W

A
Y

 S
T

.

NE  7TH  AVE.

NW 12TH  LOOP

Feet

0 1000 2000

Buffer Zones

 Schools - 1000 ft Buffer

 Recreation Facility - 1000 ft Buffer

 Childcare Center - 1000 ft Buffer

 Public Parks - 1000 ft Buffer

 Public Transit Center - 1000ft Buffer

 Arcade - 1000 ft Buffer

 Zoning 2013

 Single Family Residential

 Limited Multi-Family Residential

 Multi-Family Residential

 Mulit-Family Residential

 Residential Office

 Neighborhood Commercial

 Central Business District

 Central Business District 1

 Central Business District 2

 Community Commercial

 Highway Service Commercial

 Highway Corridor Commercial

 Planned Industrial Park

 Industrial

 Planned Industrial Park

 Public Facilities

 Open Space

 Outside City Limits

PRELIMINARY

ATTACHMENT 3

109



 

Planning Commission 
October 22, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
October 22, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Kristi Jensen, Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Greg 

Wasinger and Ana Schlecht 
Absent: David Fikse 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner, 
Cac Kamak  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE SEPTEMBER 24, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Billie Cook (651SE Bayshore Drive) thanked the Planning Commissioners for their service and 
complemented them on their professionalism, kindness, and attentiveness. 
 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 1) and briefed the Planning 
Commission on the need to revise the Municipal Code in response to State law changes 
pertaining to marijuana related uses as well a preliminary research on this topic.  Mr. Powers 
spoke about background issues, moratorium regulations, City Council action to date, preliminary 
information, schedule and community involvement opportunities.   
 
Planning Commissioners had the following questions: 
 

 Is the Liquor Control Board in charge of both medical marijuana and recreational 
marijuana?  Mr. Powers explained that they are only in charge of recreational marijuana.  

 How is the 1,000 foot buffer measured?  Mr. Powers explained that is a straight line from 
property line to property line.  If a property is bisected by the buffer, that property is also 
precluded from medical and recreational marijuana licensing. 

 Does production licensing have to be non-residential?  Mr. Powers said that is up to the 
City as a community to decide. 

 How many licenses are allocated for Oak Harbor?  Mr. Powers said there is a total 
allocation of four retail licenses for Island County, one of which is for the City of Oak 
Harbor.    

 Does the Municipal Code prohibit any sort of agricultural activity in the City?  Mr. Powers 
believed that there are restrictions on certain types of food processing plants but not for 
just agricultural uses themselves.  Mr. Powers thought the Code was silent in that area. 

 Is there an allocation for production and processing?  Mr. Powers said from his reading, 
the State had not established a jurisdiction limit on production and processing but do 
have an overall limit on production and there are levels of production.  Most communities 
are addressing all three types of licenses in preparation for what the State may decide. 

 How does the City prohibit selling marijuana?  Mr. Powers said he wasn’t sure but there 
has been a court challenge to one of the communities that have prohibited it and he was 
not sure whether there was a decision yet. 

 

110



 

Planning Commission 
October 22, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

There was discussion about the timing of the State issuance of licenses, the effect of the 
moratorium and the City’s schedule. 
 
Mr. Powers provided additional information (Attachment 2) and stated that staff will present a 
draft code at the next meeting based upon research and what other communities are doing in 
recognition of our existing zoning code structure.  
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak updated the Planning Commission on the continuing work and effort with the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update.  Mr. Kamak reviewed the check list that was provided by the 
Department of Commerce for cities to use to determine if the city plans and regulations meet the 
requirements of the Growth Management Act (GMA).  Mr. Kamak also summarized the possible 
amendments and shared a draft public participation plan for the 2016 update.  
 
Mr. Fakkema asked if anyone wished to make public comment. 
 
Ann Brett (Island County resident) spoke about the flooding she has experienced on her 
property since three or four housing developments were been built near her property. She 
asked that the City think about the land owner that is going to be impacted. 
 
Angie Homola (Island County resident) thanked the Planning Commission for their work.  
Ms. Homola spoke about the importance of jurisdictions sharing the same methodology when 
making decisions about whether cities should enlarge their boundaries.  She also spoke about 
the City’s court challenge of the County’s decision regarding annexation before the Growth 
Management Hearings Board and Superior Court. 
 
ADJOURN:  8:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

111



Marijuana Related Uses -  
Code Amendment Project 

Planning Commission 

October 22, 2013 

Presentation Overview 

• Background
• Issues 
• Moratorium regulations
• City Council action to date
• Preliminary information
• Schedule 
• Community involvement opportunities

Background 

• Medical marijuana
• RCW 69.51A amended in 2011.
• Qualifying patients may create and participate in collective 

gardens for medical marijuana purposes.
• RCW 69.51A.140: Cities may regulate collective gardens 

through zoning, business licenses, health and safety 
regulations, etc. 

• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not
adequately address this topic (business license only at this 
time). 

Background (cont.) 

• I-502
• Approved by voters on November 6, 2012. 
• Legalized (?) the production, sale and use of marijuana 

products purchased from State licensed stores for adults 
age twenty-one and over. 

• Washington State Liquor Control Board tasked with 
developing rules that will govern production, processing 
and retailing. 

• Rules adopted October 16, 2013; become final November 16,
2013. 

• Accept license applications from November 18-December 18, 
2013.  

• Licenses issued in March/April 2014? 

ATTACHMENT 1

112



Background (cont.)

• I-502 (cont.)

• Establishes certain limitations on the Liquor Control Board’s 
issuance of licenses. 

• No licenses for premises within 1,000 feet of any 
• elementary school or secondary school, 
• playground, 
• recreation facility, 
• child care center, 
• public park, 
• public transit center or library, or
• arcade.

• The State’s licensing regulations however will not address 
local zoning and other land use related issues. 

• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not
adequately address I-502 (business license only at this time).

Background (cont.) 

• Medical and I-502 Marijuana
• Oak Harbor’s zoning and licensing regulations do not

adequately address either topic at this time 
•  (business license only). 

• New regulatory territory.
• Time needed to identify land use impacts before adoption 

of regulations or issuance of any business license.
• Staff recommended the City Council impose a moratorium

to preserve the status quo as necessary: 
• Provides opportunity to consider State’s final rules, and
• Allows City time to study, draft, hold public hearings and

adopt land use and/or licensing regulations.

Moratoria 

• Cities allowed to adopt under RCW 36.70A.390.

• Public hearing not required so long as one is conducted
within 60 days. 

• Findings of fact justifying the moratorium must be adopted
by the City Council. 

• May be effective for up to six months

– Up to one year with adoption of a work plan. 

• May be renewed for one or more six-month periods 

–  Requires a new public hearing and additional findings of fact. 

City Council 

• Staff briefed City Council at their workshop on 8/28/13

• Council adopted two ordinances on 9/3/13 imposing a six-
month moratorium on marijuana-related activities 

– These ordinances direct staff and the Planning Commission to work 
on regulations 

• Council conducted the required public hearings on both 
ordinances on 10/1/13 and kept the moratoriums in place

• Council requested staff return as quickly as possible with 
draft regulations 

ATTACHMENT 1

113



Additional Information 

• I-502 FAQs and news bulletins from AWC

• US Dept. of Justice memo

• Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) I-502 FAQs 

• MRSC I-502 ordinance comparison table

• MRSC article on medical marijuana reform

• LCB draft recommendations on merging medical marijuana 
and I-502 laws 

• MRSC Medical marijuana ordinances table

• Ordinances from Milton, Mukilteo (draft) and Tukwila

• Map of sensitive land uses and their 1,000 foot buffers

Schedule 

• 10/22/13 Planning Commission – Share Oak Harbor map (with 1000’ 
buffers around sensitive uses) and additional information; get 
preliminary feedback 

• 11/26/13 Planning Commission – Introduce draft code to PC (draft based 
on feedback from above meeting) and open public hearing 

•  12/10/13 Planning Commission – PC closes the public hearing and makes 
recommendation to CC 

• 1/22/14 City Council – Brief CC on PC work and recommendation

• 2/4/14  City Council – CC considers draft ordinance

• 2/18/14 City Council – CC considers draft ordinance (if necessary)

Community Involvement 

• Planning Commission meetings and hearings

• City Council hearings 

• Provide written comments on SEPA checklist/decision

• Provide written comments to staff

• Call or talk to staff

• Contact us!
– (360) 279-4511

– spowers@oakharbor.org 

• Meeting notices 

– http://www.oakharbor.org 

ATTACHMENT 1

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

Date: November 26, 2013 
Subject: Marijuana Related Uses – Code 

Amendment Project

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 
  

PURPOSE
This report presents a draft ordinance for the Planning Commission’s consideration.  The draft 
ordinance establishes the zoning districts and standards associated with marijuana related uses as 
allowed by I-502.

BACKGROUND
Last month staff provided the Planning Commission background information on recent State 
laws pertaining to medical and recreational marijuana.  In short, the information summarized 
actions at the State level, advised the Planning Commission that the City Council had enacted 
two moratorium ordinances intended to provide the City time to respond to these laws (through 
the drafting of development and licensing regulations) and presented a tentative schedule for 
completing the work.  Staff also presented a preliminary map depicting 1,000 foot buffers applied 
around those sensitive land uses identified by I-502.

This month staff presents a revised map, the results of a zoning code review intended to help 
determine similarities between existing uses and marijuana related uses (and the zoning districts 
they may locate in), and an initial draft ordinance.

DISCUSSION
Staff’s approach to preparing the initial draft ordinance to regulate those uses approved by I-502 
included the following: 

 applying the State required 1,000 foot buffer around sensitive uses to Oak Harbor’s land 
use geography;  

 reviewing Oak Harbor’s zoning code to determine which uses may be similar from a land 
use impact perspective to the new marijuana related uses (as a means to begin to establish 
which zoning districts may be appropriate to locate those uses); and 

 reviewing codes from other communities to see how they have addressed marijuana 
related uses and apply those concepts to Oak Harbor. 

Updated Preliminary Map 
The preliminary map has been updated since the October Planning Commission meeting.  For the 

 

City of Oak Harbor
Planning Commission Report

70

175



P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

updated map staff eliminated properties that were either fully or partially contained within the 
1,000 foot buffer radius.  For the partially contained parcels, if a portion of a property fell within 
this distance the entire parcel was deemed to be unavailable for the possible siting of a marijuana 
related use.  The updated map also ‘whites out’ all parcels zoned any of the Residential districts, 
and the Public Facilities and Open Space districts as the draft code assumes these zoning districts 
will not be considered as possible locations.  The updated map (Attachment 1) shows the areas 
encumbered by the various buffers and that in general the northern portion of Oak Harbor has the 
most properties available for marijuana related uses. 

Zoning Code Review 
Staff reviewed the current zoning code to determine where marijuana related uses might locate,
based on matching their basic land use characteristic with existing uses in the City’s various 
zoning districts.  The results of this review are shown in a table (see Attachment 2). 

The ‘Similar or Related Uses’ columns of the table display those existing uses in the zoning code 
(principal permitted, conditional or accessory) that are similar or related from a land use 
perspective only to the three categories of marijuana related uses (production, processing and 
retailing).  Examples include greenhouses as a conditional use in the R-1 zoning district (similar 
to marijuana production) and retail bakery in the C-1 zoning district (similar to marijuana 
retailing). 

The X’s in the ‘Marijuana Related Uses’ columns of the table signify which zoning district each 
of the three categories of marijuana related uses (production, processing and retailing) could be 
located in when evaluated from a land use perspective only.  This evaluation does not address 
appropriateness of the use in the zoning district or take into account any potential negative 
impacts of the proposed uses; it is merely a ‘does it fit’ evaluation.  Please note the X’s in the 
columns do not represent a recommendation that the marijuana related use should be included in 
that district’s permitted, conditional or accessory uses.

Codes from Other Cities 
In researching approaches to drafting the code, staff reviewed codes from the following cities: 
Aberdeen, Burien, Milton, Monroe, Mukilteo, Normandy Park, Redmond, Seattle, Spokane, 
Tacoma and Tukwila.  Concepts and language from some of these codes were used in preparing 
the initial draft. 

The Draft Code 
The draft code contains a list of appropriate definitions, the standards for locating a marijuana 
production, processing or retailing facility, and the development standards applicable to each 
facility.  After reviewing the information noted above, and only as a means to start the 
community conversation, staff drafted the initial ordinance using the following zoning districts 

71

176



P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

for the various marijuana related uses: 

 Production: Planned Industrial Park and Industrial 
 Processing: Planned Industrial Park and Industrial 
 Retailing: C-4 and Industrial 

A variety of development standards are recommended as a means to limit potential negative 
impacts from these uses.  In addition to these unique standards, each facility will be required to 
meet the standards of the underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code 
regulations. 

The initial draft ordinance is of course subject to change as part of the public review process.  
Please also note that the draft is still undergoing staff review and it is possible that staff may 
suggest revisions to it as well. 

Medical Marijuana 
The State Legislature has directed the LCB to work with the Departments of Health and Revenue 
to clarify the interaction between the medical marijuana law and I-502.  With this effort in 
progress staff believes it is appropriate to delay drafting a medical marijuana code at this time.  
Once the State determines how (or if) the two bodies of law are integrated the City could modify 
this draft code or draft a separate one as necessary.

RECOMMENDATION
 Open public hearing, accept public testimony, provide feedback to staff and continue the 

hearing to December 10, 2013.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Updated preliminary map 
2. Zoning district comparison table 
3. Draft ordinance 

72

177



178



AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

2 
   

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

la
te

d 
U

se
s a

nd
 Z

on
in

g 
Co

de
 S

im
ila

r o
r R

el
at

ed
 U

se
s C

om
pa

ris
on

 
 Zo

ni
ng

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
Si

m
ila

r o
r R

el
at

ed
 U

se
s1  

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

la
te

d 
U

se
s2  

 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l P

er
m

itt
ed

 U
se

 
Co

nd
iti

on
al

 U
se

 
Ac

ce
ss

or
y 

U
se

 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

ta
ili

ng
 

PR
E 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Re
sid

en
tia

l 
Es

ta
te

 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s  

X 
 

 

R-
1 

 
Si

ng
le

-fa
m

ily
 

Re
sid

en
tia

l 
N

on
e 

N
ur

se
ry

 a
nd

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s  

X 
 

 

R-
2 

Li
m

ite
d 

M
ul

tip
le

-
fa

m
ily

 
Re

sid
en

tia
l 

N
on

e 

An
y 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

n 
R -

1 
di

st
ric

t  

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s  

X 
 

 

R-
3 

M
ul

tip
le

-fa
m

ily
 

Re
sid

en
tia

l 
N

on
e 

An
y 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

n 
R -

2 
di

st
ric

t 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

X 
 

 

R-
4 

 
M

ul
tip

le
-fa

m
ily

 
Re

sid
en

tia
l 

N
on

e 
An

y 
co

nd
iti

on
al

 u
se

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 a
n 

R -
3 

di
st

ric
t 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

X 
 

 

RO
 

Re
sid

en
tia

l 
O

ffi
ce

 
N

on
e 

An
y 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

n 
R -

4 
di

st
ric

t 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
us

es
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 - 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

X 
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1  T
he

 ‘S
im

ila
r o

r R
el

at
ed

 U
se

s’
 c

ol
um

ns
 d

isp
la

y 
th

os
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

us
es

 in
 th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 c
od

e 
th

at
 h

av
e 

la
nd

 u
se

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s s

im
ila

r t
o 

th
e 

m
ar

iju
an

a 
re

la
te

d 
us

es
. 

 2  T
he

 X
’s

 in
 th

e 
‘M

ar
iju

an
a 

Re
la

te
d 

U
se

s’
 c

ol
um

ns
 si

gn
ify

 w
hi

ch
 zo

ni
ng

 d
ist

ric
t e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s o
f m

ar
iju

an
a 

re
la

te
d 

us
es

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 w
he

n 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

fr
om

 a
 la

nd
 u

se
 p

er
sp

ec
tiv

e 
on

ly
. T

hi
s e

va
lu

at
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

ny
 se

co
nd

ar
y 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s;

 it
 

m
er

el
y 

m
at

ch
es

 th
e 

m
ar

iju
an

a 
re

la
te

d 
us

es
 to

 a
n 

ex
ist

in
g 

zo
ni

ng
 d

is
tr

ic
t. 

 

74

179



AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

2 
  Zo

ni
ng

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
Si

m
ila

r o
r R

el
at

ed
 U

se
s1  

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

la
te

d 
U

se
s2  

 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l P

er
m

itt
ed

 U
se

 
Co

nd
iti

on
al

 U
se

 
Ac

ce
ss

or
y 

U
se

 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

ta
ili

ng
 

C-
1 

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 

Re
ta

il 
us

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• B

ak
er

y,
 re

ta
il 

on
ly

; 
•D

ai
ry

 p
ro

du
ct

s,
 re

ta
il 

on
ly

;  
•F

lo
ris

t s
ho

p;
 

•G
ar

de
n 

su
pp

lie
s a

nd
 

ho
rt

ic
ul

tu
ra

l n
ur

se
ry

, 
no

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s;

 

N
ur

se
ry

 a
nd

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s  

N
on

e 
X 

 
X 

CB
D 

 
Ce

nt
ra

l B
us

in
es

s 
Di

st
ric

t  

Re
ta

il 
us

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• B

ak
er

y,
 re

ta
il 

on
ly

 ; 
•C

on
fe

ct
io

ne
ry

 st
or

e;
 

•G
ift

 sh
op

 ; 
•P

ha
rm

ac
y 

an
d 

dr
ug

 
s t

or
e 

; 
•V

ar
ie

ty
 st

or
e 

 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

 
 

X 

C-
3 

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

Re
ta

il 
us

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• A

ny
 p

rin
ci

pa
l u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-1

 a
nd

 
CB

D 
di

st
ric

t;  
•N

ur
se

ry
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

Co
nd

iti
on

al
 u

se
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-1

 
an

d 
CB

D 
di

st
ric

t 
N

on
e 

X 
 

X 

C-
4 

 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 

Fa
rm

 a
nd

 g
ar

de
n 

su
pp

lie
s,

 p
la

nt
 n

ur
se

rie
s 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

X 
 

X 

75

180



AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

2 
  Zo

ni
ng

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
Si

m
ila

r o
r R

el
at

ed
 U

se
s1  

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

la
te

d 
U

se
s2  

 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l P

er
m

itt
ed

 U
se

 
Co

nd
iti

on
al

 U
se

 
Ac

ce
ss

or
y 

U
se

 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
M

ar
iju

an
a 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 

M
ar

iju
an

a 
Re

ta
ili

ng
 

C-
5 

 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 

Co
rr

id
or

 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

Re
ta

il 
us

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• A

ny
 p

rin
ci

pa
l u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-1

; 
•N

ur
se

ry
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
s 

Co
nd

iti
on

al
 u

se
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-1

 
an

d 
CB

D 
di

st
ric

t 
N

on
e 

X 
 

X 

PB
P 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Pa
rk

 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g,
 

pr
oc

es
sin

g 
an

d 
pa

ck
ag

in
g 

of
 fo

od
, 

ph
ar

m
ac

eu
tic

al
s 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

 
X 

 

PI
P 

Pl
an

ne
d 

In
du

st
ria

l P
ar

k  

•M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g,
 

pr
oc

es
sin

g 
an

d 
pa

ck
ag

in
g 

of
 fo

od
, 

ph
ar

m
ac

eu
tic

al
s  

•N
ur

se
ry

 a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

s 

Sm
al

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

sp
ec

ia
liz

in
g 

in
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 

ch
em

ic
al

 p
ro

du
ct

s  
N

on
e 

X 
X 

 

I  In
du

st
ria

l  
•P

rin
ci

pa
l u

se
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-3

 
di

st
ric

t; 
•F

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
ug

 
pr

oc
es

sin
g 

•A
ny

 c
on

di
tio

na
l u

se
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 a

 C
-3

 
di

st
ric

t; 
•P

ro
du

ce
 st

an
d 

N
on

e 
X 

X 
X 

PF
 

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

N
on

e 
 

 
 

O
S 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 la

nd
 

N
on

e 
N

on
e 

X 
 

 

 

76

181



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 1 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

WHEREAS, the voters of Washington State approved Initiative 502 (I-502) in November 2012 
legalizing, taxing and regulating the recreational use of marijuana, codified in Chapter 69.50 
RCW ; and  

WHEREAS, under I-502, the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) was tasked with 
the responsibility to adopt the rules governing the licensing and operations of marijuana 
producers, processors, and retailers, and the rules went into effect on Nov. 16, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice distributed a guidance memo to 
U.S. Attorneys regarding state implementation of recreational marijuana ballot measures and 
setting forth the federal government enforcement priorities, essentially acknowledging that as 
long as state regulation and enforcement is sufficiently robust and consistent with federal 
priorities, the federal government may choose not to interfere; and  

WHEREAS, the 1,000-foot separations required by I-502 and included in the adopted licensing 
rules are about protecting children, which the City Council and the citizens of Oak Harbor 
support; and 

WHEREAS, the LCB has created three categories of state licenses and prohibits holders of a 
retail license from also holding a production or processing license;   

WHEREAS, the establishment of marijuana related uses without appropriate regulations could 
lead to negative impacts to the community, including but not necessarily limited to: 

1. Conversion of residential uses into cannabis cultivation and processing facilities 
removing valuable housing stock from the community. 

2. Degraded neighborhood aesthetics due to shuttered-up homes, offensive odors, increased 
nighttime traffic, and parking. 

3. Environmental damages from chemicals being discharged into surrounding and off-site 
soils, and into storm and sanitary sewer systems. 

4. Risk of fire hazard due to overloaded service connections used to operate grow lights and 
fans. 

5. Illegal structural modifications. 

WHEREAS, an undue concentration of licensed marijuana facilities in the City of Oak Harbor 
could be detrimental to the quality of life of Oak Harbor residents and the economic well-being 
of the city; and  

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council deems it to be in the public interest to establish zoning 
regulations related to state-licensed marijuana facilities and to require all such facilities to obtain 
a City of Oak Harbor business license; and   

77
182



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 2 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

WHEREAS, the intent to amend development regulations to allow state-licensed marijuana 
facilities and a SEPA Determination of Non Significance were noticed in accordance with city of 
Oak Harbor procedures and regulations; and  

WHEREAS, a Determination of Non Significance was issued on __ ______ 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 
26, 2013 and December 10, 2013 to consider this ordinance and forwarded a recommendation to 
the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City of Oak City Council held a public hearing on _______, 2013 to consider 
this ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 
approve violation of federal or state law; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 

Section One. There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.22 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
which shall have the following title and sections: 

Chapter 19.22 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES 

Sections:  
19.22.010  Purpose and Intent 
19.22.020  Definitions 
19.22.030  Locations Allowed 
19.22.040  Development Standards 
19.22.050  Non-conforming Use 

Section Two.   
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.010 entitled “Purpose and Intent” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 

The production, processing and retailing of marijuana is and remains illegal under federal law.  
Nothing herein or as provided elsewhere in the ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor is an 
authorization to circumvent federal law or provide permission to any person or entity to violate 
federal law.  Only state-licensed marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 
retailers may locate in the City of Oak Harbor and then only pursuant to a license issued by the 
State of Washington.  The purposes of these provisions is solely to acknowledge the enactment 
by Washington voters of Initiative 502 and state licensing procedure and to permit to, but only 
to, the extent required by state law marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 
retailers to operate in designated zones of the City.  These provisions are intended to mitigate 
potential impacts of marijuana related uses on nearby properties and the community and to 

78
183



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 3 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

promote the public health, safety and welfare through the application of appropriate locational 
criteria and development standards.   

Section Three. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.020 entitled “Definitions” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) “Child care center” means an entity that regularly provides child day care, preschool and 
early learning services for a group of children for periods of less than twenty-four hours 
licensed by the Washington state department of early learning under Chapter 170-295 
WAC. Child care centers include: Commercial Day Care, “Family Day Care” and “Day 
Nursery” entities.

(2) “Game arcade” means an entertainment venue featuring primarily video games, 
simulators, and/or other amusement devices. 

(3) “Library” means an organized collection of resources made accessible to the public 
for reference or borrowing supported with money derived from taxation. 

(4) “Marijuana” or “Cannabis” means all parts of the plant Cannabis, whether growing or 
not, with a THC concentration greater than 0.3 percent on a dry weight basis; the seeds 
thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, 
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin. The 
term does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from the stalks, oil 
or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, 
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the resin extracted there 
from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seeds of the plant which is incapable of 
germination. 

(5) “Marijuana facility” means a state-licensed marijuana production, processing, or 
retail facility or a medical cannabis collective garden. Marijuana facilities shall not 
be a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 -Definitions and as authorized 
under OHMC 19.34. 

(6) “Marijuana-infused products” means products that contain marijuana or marijuana 
extracts and are intended for human use. The term “marijuana-infused products” does 
not include useable marijuana. 

(7) “Marijuana processing facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to
process, package, and label usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale 
at wholesale to marijuana retailers.  A marijuana processing facility shall not be a home 
occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 
19.34.

(8) “Marijuana processor” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 
process marijuana into useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products, package and 

79
184



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 4 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

label useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale in retail outlets, and 
sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products at wholesale to marijuana 
retailers. 

(9) “Marijuana producer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 
produce and sell marijuana at wholesale to marijuana processors and other marijuana 
producers. 

(10) “Marijuana production facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington 
to produce marijuana for sale at wholesale to marijuana processor licensees and to
other marijuana producers. A marijuana production facility shall not be a home 
occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 
19.34.

(11) “Marijuana retailer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 
sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products in a retail outlet. 

(12) “Marijuana retail facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to
sell only usable marijuana, marijuana-infused products and marijuana paraphernalia 
to persons twenty-one years of age and older. A marijuana retail facility shall not be
a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under 
OHMC 19.34.

(13) “Playground” means a public outdoor recreation area for children, usually equipped 
with swings, slides, and other playground equipment, owned and/or managed by a 
city, county, state, or federal government. 

(14) “Recreation center or facility” means a supervised center that provides a broad range of 
activities and events including programming for persons under twenty-one years of age, 
owned and/or managed by a charitable nonprofit organization, city, county, state, or 
federal government.  Examples include, but are not limited to, the John Vanderzicht 
Memorial Pool and Oak Harbor Boy's & Girl's Club. 

(15) “Retail outlet” means a location licensed by the State Liquor Control Board for the retail 
sale of usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products. 

(16) “Useable marijuana” means dried marijuana flowers. The term “usable marijuana” does not 
include marijuana-infused products. 

  
Section Four. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.030 entitled “Locations Allowed” to the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) State licensed marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate in the city 
pursuant to the following restrictions:

80
185



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 5 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

 (a) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors must comply with all requirements 
of state law and the Washington State Liquor Control Board’s regulations.

 (b) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate only in the Planned  
 Industrial Park or Industrial district(s).

 (c) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate on a site or in a 
building in which non-conforming production or processing uses have been 
established in any zone other than the Planned Industrial Park or Industrial 
district(s).

 (d) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not operate as an accessory 
 to a primary use or as a home occupation. 

 (e) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate within one 
 thousand feet of the perimeter of the grounds of any elementary or secondary 
 school, playground, recreation center or facility, child care center, public park, 
 public transit center, or library, or any game arcade admission to which is not 
 restricted to persons aged twenty-one years or older. 

(2) State licensed marijuana retailers may locate in the city pursuant to the following 
restrictions: 

 (a) Marijuana retailers must comply with all requirements of state law and the 
Washington State Liquor control Board’s regulations.

 (b) Marijuana retailers may locate only in the C-4 and Industrial district(s). 
 (c) Marijuana retailers shall not locate in a building in which non-conforming retail 

uses have been established in any residential or office zone. 
 (e) Marijuana retailers shall not operate as an accessory to a primary use or as a home 

 occupation. 
(f) Marijuana retailers shall not locate within one thousand feet of the perimeter of 
 the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, playground, recreation center 
 or facility, child care center, public park, public transit center, or library, or any 
 game arcade admission to which is not restricted t persons aged twenty-one years 
 or older. 

Section Five. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Development Standards” to the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) Marijuana retail, processing and production facilities.  In addition to the standards of the 
underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code regulations, all state-
licensed marijuana facilities shall meet the following development standards: 

 (a) All facilities must be state-licensed and comply with all of the standards for 
 state licensed marijuana facilities. 

 (b) No marijuana facility shall be allowed as a home occupation. 
 (c) The definitions set forth in RCW 69.50.101-.102, WAC 314-55-010 and OHMC
  Section 19.22.020 shall control. In the event of conflict, the provisions of OHMC  

 shall prevail. 
 (d) Location. 
  (i) No more than one facility shall be located on a single parcel. 

81
186



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 6 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

(ii) Marijuana retail and processing facilities shall be located fully within a
permanent structure designed to comply with the city building code and  

 constructed under a building/tenant improvement permit from the city
regardless of the size or configuration of the structure. 

(iii) Marijuana production facilities shall be located: 
(A) Fully within a permanent structure designed to comply with the 

city building code and constructed under a building/tenant 
improvement permit from the city regardless of the size or 
configuration of the structure; or 

(B) In non-rigid greenhouses, other structures, or an expanse of open 
or clear ground fully enclosed by a physical barrier enclosed by a 
sight obscuring wall or fence eight (8) feet high. 

(iv) Marijuana facilities shall not be located in a mobile structure. 
(v) No state-licensed marijuana facility shall be located within 1,000 feet of

the perimeter of the parcel on which any of the entities listed below are 
located. The distance shall be measured in the manner set forth in WAC 
314-55-050(10). 
(A) Elementary or secondary school (public or private); 
(B) Playground; 
(C) Recreation center or facility; 
(D) Child care center; 
(E) Public park;
(F) Public transit center; 
(G) Library; 
(H) Any game arcade which allows admission to persons under 21 

years of age. 
(vi) No state-licensed marijuana retail facility shall be located within 1,000 feet 

of the perimeter of a parcel on which a state-licensed marijuana 
production or processing facility or medical cannabis collective garden is
located nor shall a state-licensed marijuana production or processing 
facility be located within 1,000 feet of the perimeter of a parcel on which 
a state-licensed marijuana retail facility or medical cannabis collective 
garden is located. The distance shall be measured in the manner set forth in
WAC 314-55-050(10). 

(e) No production, processing or delivery of marijuana may be visible to the public 
 nor may it be visible through windows. 
(f) Marijuana retail uses shall not include drive-throughs, exterior, or off-site sales. 
(g) All fertilizers, chemicals, gases and hazardous materials shall be handled in

compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. No fertilizers, 
chemicals, gases or hazardous materials shall be allowed to enter neither a
sanitary sewer or stormwater sewer system nor be released into the atmosphere 
outside of the structure where the facility is located. 

(h) No odors shall be allowed to migrate beyond the interior portion of the structure 
where a marijuana facility is located. 

(i) A City of Oak Harbor business license pursuant to Chapter 5.03 OHMC and a 
state license pursuant to Chapter 314-55 WAC shall be obtained prior to the start 
of operations of the facility. 

(j) All facilities shall comply with Chapter 19.27 RCW, State Building Code Act 

82
187



ATTACHMENT 3 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 7 of 7 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code.docx

a n d  T i t l e  1 7  B uildings. Appropriate permits shall be obtained for all changes 
of use, tenant improvements, mechanical system improvements, electrical 
upgrades and similar work. 

Section Five. 
There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Non-conforming Uses” to the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana producer, marijuana processor, or 
marijuana retailer as those terms are defined in this ordinance, that was engaged in that 
activity prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have been a legally 
established use under the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code and that us shall 
not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status.

Section Six. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Seven. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013.

       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

________________________   _______________________________
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk    Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 

    
Published: _______________ 

83
188



 

Planning Commission 
November 26, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
November 26, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger and David Fikse  

Absent: Kristi Jensen, Bruce Freeman and Ana Schlecht 
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner, 
Cac Kamak  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None present for comment. 
 
MINUTES: MR. WASINGER MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 22, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 1) and stated staff will ask 
Planning Commission to open the public hearing, accept public testimony and continue the 
public hearing to the December 10th Planning Commission meeting.  Mr. Powers provided the 
background, information considered for the draft code and presented the draft code.  Mr. 
Powers reported that the preliminary map with 1,000 foot buffers from sensitive land uses has 
been revised to exclude properties intersected by the 1,000 foot line and excludes residential, 
public facilities and open space zoning. Staff have reviewed the City’s current code for similar or 
related uses (matched with marijuana uses) and have reviewed codes from other jurisdictions.  
 
Mr. Powers summarized the draft code which includes the following: 

• Definitions 
• Location standards for marijuana facilities 

• 1,000 foot separation from sensitive uses and between retail and other marijuana 
uses 

• No home occupations 
• Zoning districts (starting point): 

• Production: PIP and I 
• Processing: PIP and I 
• Retailing: C-4 and I 

• Development standards include: 
• Indoor only  
• Permanent structures 
• Production, processing or delivery may not be visible to the public 
• No drive throughs 

 
Mr. Powers reiterated that the draft is still under staff review and reported that that the state has 
directed the Liquor Control Board to work with Health and Revenue Departments to clarify 
interaction between two laws so the City will hold off drafting medical marijuana code.  Mr. 
Powers also reviewed the revised schedule for the project.  
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing. 
 

189



 

Planning Commission 
November 26, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 

 
Planning Commissioners had the following questions/comments: 
 

 Page 81, item 2f was unclear and needed to be rephrased.  
 How much of the draft code was taken from other jurisdictions and would be possible for 

staff to identify which parts were taken from other jurisdiction and which are unique to 
Oak Harbor.  Mr. Powers indicated the zoning districts were unique to Oak Harbor but 
most of the draft was adapted from other jurisdictions.  Mr. Powers indicated that he 
would point out the parts that are uniquely Oak Harbor. 

 Page 82(iii)(A), what is a building/tenant improvement permit?  Mr. Powers explained 
that when a tenant comes into an existing building they will get a tenant improvement 
permit to make whatever changes that they need to make to comply with the code for 
their type of business.  Mr. Powers asked if it would be clearer if the sentence said 
“…constructed under a building and/or tenant improvement permit…”  Commissioners 
concurred. 

 How do our actions impact the County?  Mr. Powers stated that the he and the County 
Planning Director are in communications on this topic. 

 What is the allotment for marijuana retail, processing and production for Oak Harbor?  
Mr. Powers stated that the state has determined that there will be four retail licenses to 
be issued in Island County and one could be issued for Oak Harbor.  There isn’t a 
limitation in the number of production or processing establishments but state law does 
establish a limitation on the total amount of production state-wide (cap of 2 million 
square feet of canopy). 

 Is this an unfunded mandate in terms of law enforcement? Mr. Powers provided 
additional information which touches on this question (Attachment 2).  

 
Mr. Powers asked the Commission for their initial thoughts on the zoning districts and 
Commission had additional questions regarding the uses allowed by the C-4, PIP and I districts. 
  
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FIKSE SECONDED A MOTION TO CONTINUE 

THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE MARIJUANA RELATED USES CODE TO 
THE DECEMBER 10, 2013 MEETING.  MOTION CARRIED.  

 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak reported that this is an amendment to the Six-year Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).  The City adopts a six-year TIP every year in July in accordance to state law.  
The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation funds awarded to 
the City.  Projects that have federal funding must appear in the six-year TIP at the local and 
state level so that the City can obligate and eventually use the federal funds. The projects listed 
on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Mr. Kamak explained that the Planning Commission is being asked to consider an amendment 
to include the Waterfront Trail in the TIP.  The City is applying for grants to improve sections of 
the Waterfront Trail along the VFW park where a recent landslide has diverted the trail.  There 
are also long standing plans to provide informational kiosks along the waterfront.  Including the 
Waterfront Trail improvements in the TIP will help the project qualify and compete with other 
projects from Island County, Island Transit, Coupeville, Langley and Skagit County. 
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing.  Seeing none, the public hearing was closed. 

190



Marijuana Related Uses -  
Code Amendment Project 

Planning Commission 

November 26, 2013 

Purpose 

•Present draft ordinance

•Open public hearing
•Accept testimony

•Continue hearing

Presentation Overview 

•Background

•Information considered for draft code

•Draft code

•Revised schedule

Background 

•October PC meeting
•Info on medical and recreational marijuana

laws presented
•Moratoria ordinances
•Preliminary map with 1,000 foot buffers

from sensitive land uses

ATTACHMENT 1

191



Info for Draft Code 

•Steps taken in drafting ordinance
•Map refined
•Reviewed Oak Harbor’s code for similar or

related uses (matched with marijuana uses)
•Reviewed codes from other jurisdictions

• Aberdeen, Burien, Milton, Monroe, Mukilteo, Normandy Park, 
Redmond, Seattle, Spokane, Tacoma and Tukwila 

Revised Map 

•Revised Preliminary Map
• 1,000 feet distance from any:

• elementary school or secondary school,
• playground,
• recreation facility,
• child care center,
• public park,
• public transit center or library, or
• arcade.

• Excludes properties intersected by 1,000 foot line
• Excludes Residential, Public Facilities and Open 

Space zoning

Revised Map 

•Review maps

Zoning Code Review 

Zoning  Similar or Related Uses Marijuana Related Uses 

Principal Conditional 
Use 

Accessory 
Use 

Marijuana 
Production 

Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

PRE None None Greenhouse X 

R-1 None Nursery; 
greenhouse 

Greenhouse X 

R-2 None Any condtl. 
use in R-1 

Greenhouse X 

R-3 None Any condtl. 
use in R-2 

Greenhouse X 

R-4 None Any condtl. 
use in R-3 

Greenhouse X 

RO None Any condtl. 
use in R-4 

Greenhouse X 

ATTACHMENT 1

192



Zoning Code Review 

Zoning  Similar or Related Uses Marijuana Related Uses 

Principal Conditional 
Use 

Accessory 
Use 

Marijuana 
Production 

Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

C-1 Retail; 
Nursery 

Nursery; 
Greenhouse 

None X X 

CBD Retail None None X 

C-3 Retail; 
nursery; 
greenhouse 

Condtl. use 
from C-1 & 
CBD 

None X X 

C-4 Farm 
supplies; 
plant 
nurseries 

None None X X 

Zoning Code Review 

Zoning  Similar or Related Uses Marijuana Related Uses 

Principal Conditional 
Use 

Accessory 
Use 

Marijuana 
Production 

Marijuana 
Processing 

Marijuana 
Retailing 

C-5 C-1 uses; 
retail; 
nursery & 
greenhouse 

Condtl. use 
from C-1 & 
CBD 

None X X 

PBP Food  
processing; 
packaging 

None None X 

PIP Food  
processing; 
packaging; 
greenhouse 

Chemical 
product 
production 

None X X 

I C-3 uses; 
food 
processing 

C-3 condtl. 
use; 
produce 
stand 

None X X X 

PF None None None 

OS Agriculture None None X 

Draft Code 

•Definitions
•Location standards for marijuana facilities

• 1,000 foot separation from sensitive uses and 
between retail and other marijuana uses

• No home occupations
• Zoning districts (starting point):

• Production: PIP and I 
• Processing: PIP and I 
• Retailing: C-4 and I 

Draft Code 

• Development standards include:

• Indoor only 

• Permanent structures

• Production, processing or delivery may not be 
visible to the public 

• No drive throughs

• Draft is still under staff review

ATTACHMENT 1

193



Medical Marijuana 

•LCB to work with Health and Revenue Depts.
•Clarify interaction between two laws
•Results?
•Hold off drafting medical marijuana code

 Revised Schedule 

• 10/22/13 Planning Commission – Share Oak Harbor map (with 1000’ 
buffers around sensitive uses) and additional information; get 
preliminary feedback 

• 11/26/13 Planning Commission – Introduce draft code to PC (draft based 
on feedback from above meeting) and open public hearing 

•  12/10/13 Planning Commission – PC continues the public hearing

• 1/22/14 City Council – Brief CC on PC work

• 1/28/14 Planning Commission – Closes public hearing and makes 
recommendation to CC 

• 2/4/14  City Council – CC considers draft ordinance

• 2/18/14 City Council – CC considers draft ordinance (if necessary)

Community Involvement 

• Planning Commission meetings and hearings

• City Council hearings 

• Provide written comments on SEPA checklist/decision

• Provide written comments to staff

• Call or talk to staff

• Contact us!
– (360) 279-4511

– spowers@oakharbor.org 

• Meeting notices 

– http://www.oakharbor.org 

 Recommended Action 

• Open public hearing 

• Accept testimony 

•  Provide feedback to staff

• Continue public hearing to December 10, 2013

– Suggested motion: I move the Planning Commission 
continue the public hearing on the marijuana related uses
code to the December 10, 2013 meeting. 

ATTACHMENT 1

194



195



 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

 Date: December 10, 2013  

 Subject: Marijuana Related Uses – Code 

Amendment Project  
 

 

 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

  

 

PURPOSE 

This report presents a revised draft ordinance pertaining to marijuana related uses for the 

Planning Commission’s consideration.   

 

BACKGROUND 

Last month staff provided the Planning Commission a revised map, the results of a zoning code 

review intended to help determine similarities between existing uses and marijuana related uses 

(and the zoning districts they may locate in), and an initial draft ordinance.  The Commission 

opened a public hearing on the draft code and continued it to December 10, 2013. 

 

DISCUSSION 

The draft ordinance has been revised (slightly) as the result of additional staff review and 

Planning Commission comments from the November 26
th

 public hearing.  The majority of the 

revisions were refinements to the definitions, while others specified how the 1,000 foot spacing 

requirement is measured.  The revised draft is included as Attachment 1  

 

The initial draft presented to the Planning Commission last month identified the C-4, PIP and I as 

zoning districts that may be appropriate for the location of marijuana related uses.  The inclusion 

of these zones in the draft was based on the updated preliminary map (Attachment 2) and on the 

overall availability of commercial parcels in Oak Harbor.  As part of the evaluation of this initial 

concept, the Planning Commission asked questions regarding the uses allowed by the C-4, PIP 

and I districts.  To more fully answer those questions, and to perhaps assist the Commission in 

further fine tuning the draft, copies of the uses allowed in the C-4, PIP, and I zoning districts are 

included as Attachment 3. 

 

The goal of tonight’s hearing is for the Planning Commission to take public testimony and 

provide staff additional feedback on the draft.  Staff plans to return to the Commission next 

month with what may be the final draft code. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Open the public hearing, accept public testimony, provide feedback to staff and continue 

the hearing to January 28, 2014. 

 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 
 

196



 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Marijuana code staff report.doc 

  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft ordinance 

2. Updated preliminary map 

3. Uses allowed in C-4, PIP and I zoning districts 

197



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 1 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

WHEREAS, the voters of Washington State approved Initiative 502 (I-502) in November 2012 

legalizing, taxing and regulating the recreational use of marijuana, codified in Chapter 69.50 

RCW ; and  

 

WHEREAS, under I-502, the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) was tasked with 

the responsibility to adopt the rules governing the licensing and operations of marijuana 

producers, processors, and retailers, and the rules went into effect on Nov. 16, 2013; and  

 

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice distributed a guidance memo to 

U.S. Attorneys regarding state implementation of recreational marijuana ballot measures and 

setting forth the federal government enforcement priorities, essentially acknowledging that as 

long as state regulation and enforcement is sufficiently robust and consistent with federal 

priorities, the federal government may choose not to interfere; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 1,000-foot separations required by I-502 and included in the adopted licensing 

rules are about protecting children, which the City Council and the citizens of Oak Harbor 

support; and 

 

WHEREAS, the LCB has created three categories of state licenses and prohibits holders of a 

retail license from also holding a production or processing license;   

 

WHEREAS, the establishment of marijuana related uses without appropriate regulations could 

lead to negative impacts to the community, including but not necessarily limited to: 

1. Conversion of residential uses into cannabis cultivation and processing facilities 

removing valuable housing stock from the community. 

2. Degraded neighborhood aesthetics due to shuttered-up homes, offensive odors, increased 

nighttime traffic, and parking. 

3. Environmental damages from chemicals being discharged into surrounding and off-site 

soils, and into storm and sanitary sewer systems. 

4. Risk of fire hazard due to overloaded service connections used to operate grow lights and 

fans. 

5. Illegal structural modifications. 

6. Criminal issues such as burglary, theft and property damage. 

 

WHEREAS, an undue concentration of licensed marijuana facilities in the City of Oak Harbor 

could be detrimental to the quality of life of Oak Harbor residents and the economic well-being 

of the city; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council deems it to be in the public interest to establish zoning 

regulations related to state-licensed marijuana facilities and to require all such facilities to obtain 

a City of Oak Harbor business license; and   

 

198



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 2 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

WHEREAS, the intent to amend development regulations to allow state-licensed marijuana 

facilities and a SEPA Determination of Non Significance were noticed in accordance with city of 

Oak Harbor procedures and regulations; and  

 

WHEREAS, a Determination of Non Significance was issued on __ ______ 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 

26, 2013 and December 10, 2013 to consider this ordinance and forwarded a recommendation to 

the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak City Council held a public hearing on _______, 2013 to consider 

this ordinance; and  

 

WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 

approve violation of federal or state law; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 

 

Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.22 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code 

which shall have the following title and sections: 

 

Chapter 19.22 

MARIJUANA RELATED USES 

 

Sections:  

19.22.010  Purpose and Intent 

19.22.020  Definitions 

19.22.030  Locations Allowed 

19.22.040  Development Standards 

19.22.050  Non-conforming Use 

 

Section Two.   

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.010 entitled “Purpose and Intent” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

The production, processing and retailing of marijuana is and remains illegal under federal law.  

Nothing herein or as provided elsewhere in the ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor is an 

authorization to circumvent federal law or provide permission to any person or entity to violate 

federal law.  Only state-licensed marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 

retailers may locate in the City of Oak Harbor and then only pursuant to a license issued by the 

State of Washington.  The purposes of these provisions is solely to acknowledge the enactment 

by Washington voters of Initiative 502 and state licensing procedure and to permit to, but only 

to, the extent required by state law marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 

retailers to operate in designated zones of the City.  These provisions are intended to mitigate 

potential impacts of marijuana related uses on nearby properties and the community and to 

199



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 3 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

promote the public health, safety and welfare through the application of appropriate locational 

criteria and development standards.   

 

Section Three. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.020 entitled “Definitions” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) “Child care center” means an entity that regularly provides child day care, preschool and 

early learning services for a group of children for periods of less than twenty-four hours 

licensed by the Washington state department of early learning under Chapter 170-295 

WAC. Child care centers include: Commercial Day Care, “Family Day Care” and “Day 

Nursery” entities. 

 

(2) “Elementary school” means a school for early education that provides the first four to 

eight years of basic education and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of 

public instruction. 

 

(23) “Game arcade” means an entertainment venue featuring primarily video games, 

simulators, and/or other amusement devices where persons under twenty-one years of 

age are not restricted. 

 

(34) “Library” means an organized collection of resources made accessible to the public 

for reference or borrowing supported with money derived from taxation. 

 

(45) “Marijuana” or “Cannabis” “marihjuana” means all parts of the plant Cannabis, 

whether growing or not, with a THC concentration greater than 0.3 percent on a dry 

weight basis; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every 

compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds 

or resin. The term does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from 

the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, 

manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the 

resin extracted there from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seeds of the plant which 

is incapable of germination. 

 

(56) “Marijuana facility” means a state-licensed marijuana production, processing, or 

retail facility. or a medical cannabis collective garden. Marijuana facilities shall not 

be a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 -Definitions and as authorized 

under OHMC 19.34. 

 

(67) “Marijuana-infused products” means products that contain marijuana or marijuana 

extracts and are intended for human use. The term “marijuana-infused products” does 

not include useable marijuana. 

 

(78) “Marijuana processing facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

process, package, and label usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale 

at wholesale to marijuana retailers.  A marijuana processing facility shall not be a home 

200



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 4 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

 

(89) “Marijuana processor” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

process marijuana into useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products, package and 

label useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale in retail outlets, and 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products at wholesale to marijuana 

retailers. 

 

(910) “Marijuana producer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

produce and sell marijuana at wholesale to marijuana processors and other marijuana 

producers. 

 

(1011) “Marijuana production facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington 

to produce marijuana for sale at wholesale to marijuana processor licensees and to 

other marijuana producers. A marijuana production facility shall not be a home 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

 

(1112) “Marijuana retailer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products in a retail outlet. 

 

(1213) “Marijuana retail facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

sell only usable marijuana, marijuana-infused products and marijuana paraphernalia 

to persons twenty-one years of age and older. A marijuana retail facility shall not be 

a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under 

OHMC 19.34. 

 

(1314) “Playground” means a public outdoor recreation area for children, usually equipped 

with swings, slides, and other playground equipment, owned and/or managed by a 

city, county, state, or federal government. 

 

(15) “Public park” means an area of land for the enjoyment of the public, having facilities 

for rest and/or recreation, such as a baseball diamond or basketball court, owned and/or 

managed by a city, county, state, federal government, or metropolitan park district. 

Public park does not include trails. 

 

(16) “Public transit center” means a facility located outside of the public right of way that is 

owned and managed by a transit agency or city, county, state, or federal government for 

the express purpose of staging people and vehicles where several bus or other transit 

routes converge.  They serve as efficient hubs to allow bus riders from various 

locations to assemble at a central point to take advantage of express trips or other route 

to route transfers. 

 
(1417) “Recreation center or facility” means a supervised center that provides a broad range of 

activities and events intended primarily for use by including programming for persons 

201



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 5 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

under twenty-one years of age, owned and/or managed by a charitable nonprofit 

organization, city, county, state, or federal government.  Examples include, but are not 

limited to, the John Vanderzicht Memorial Pool and Oak Harbor Boys & Girls Club. 

 

(1518) “Retail outlet” means a location licensed by the State Liquor Control Board for the retail 

sale of usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products. 

 

(19) “Secondary school” means a high and/or middle school:  A school for students who have 

completed their primary education, usually attended by children in grades seven to twelve 

and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of public instruction. 

 

(1620) “Useable marijuana” means dried marijuana flowers. The term “usable marijuana” does not 

include marijuana-infused products. 

  

Section Four. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.030 entitled “Locations Allowed” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) State licensed marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate in the city 

pursuant to the following restrictions: 

 

 (a) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors must comply with all requirements 

 of state law and the Washington State Liquor Control Board’s regulations. 

 (b) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate only in the Planned  

 Industrial Park or Industrial district(s). 

 (c) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate on a site or in a 

building in which non-conforming production or processing uses have been 

established in any zone other than the Planned Industrial Park or Industrial 

district(s). 

 (d) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not operate as an accessory 

 to a primary use or as a home occupation. 

 (e) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate within one 

 thousand feet of the perimeter of the grounds of any elementary or 

secondary  school, playground, recreation center or facility, child care center, 

public park,  public transit center, or library, or any game arcade where 

admission to which is  

  not restricted to persons aged twenty-one years or older.  The distance shall be 

   measured as the shortest straight line distance from the property line of the  

  proposed building/business location to the property line of the entities listed  

  above. 

 

(2) State licensed marijuana retailers may locate in the city pursuant to the following 

restrictions: 

 

 (a) Marijuana retailers must comply with all requirements of state law and the 

 Washington State Liquor control Board’s regulations. 

 (b) Marijuana retailers may locate only in the C-4 and Industrial district(s). 

202



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 6 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

 (c) Marijuana retailers shall not locate in a building in which non-conforming retail 

uses have been established in any residential or office zone. 

 (e) Marijuana retailers shall not operate as an accessory to a primary use or as a home 

 occupation. 

 (f) Marijuana retailers shall not locate within one thousand feet of the perimeter of 

the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, playground, recreation center 

or facility, child care center, public park, public transit center, or library, or any 

game arcade where admission to which is not restricted to persons aged twenty-

one years or older.  The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line 

distance from the property line of the proposed building/business location to the 

property line of the entities listed  above. 

 

Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Development Standards” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
(1) Marijuana retail, processing and production facilities.  In addition to the standards of the 

underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code regulations, all state-

licensed marijuana facilities shall meet the following development standards: 

 (a) All facilities must be state-licensed and comply with all of the standards for 

 state licensed marijuana facilities. 

 (b) No marijuana facility shall be allowed as a home occupation. 

 (c) The definitions set forth in RCW 69.50.101-.102, WAC 314-55-010 and OHMC 

  Section 19.22.020 shall control. In the event of conflict, the provisions of OHMC  

 shall prevail. 

 (d) Location. 

  (i) No more than one facility shall be located on a single parcel. 

(ii) Marijuana retail and processing facilities shall be located fully within a  

 permanent structure designed to comply with the city building code and  

 constructed under a building/tenant improvement permit from the city 

 regardless of the size or configuration of the structure. 

(iii) Marijuana production facilities shall be located: 

(A) Fully within a permanent structure designed to comply with the 

city building code and constructed under a building and/or a 

tenant improvement permit from the city regardless of the size or 

configuration of the structure; or 

(B) In non-rigid greenhouses, other structures, or an expanse of open 

or clear ground fully enclosed by a physical barrier enclosed by a 

sight obscuring wall or fence eight (8) feet high. 

(iv) Marijuana facilities shall not be located in a mobile structure. 
(v) No state-licensed marijuana facility shall be located within 1,000 feet of 

the perimeter of the parcel on which any of the entities listed below are 
located. The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line 
distance from property line of the proposed building/business location to 
the property line of the entities listed below.in the manner set forth in 
WAC 314-55-050(10). 
(A) Elementary or secondary school (public or private); 

203



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 7 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

(B) Playground; 

(C) Recreation center or facility; 

(D) Child care center; 

(E) Public park; 

(F) Public transit center; 

(G) Library; 

(H) Any game arcade which allows admission to persons under 21 

years of age. 

(vi)  No state-licensed marijuana retail facility shall be located within 1,000 feet 

of the perimeter of a parcel on which a state-licensed marijuana 

production or processing facility or medical cannabis collective garden is 

located nor shall a state-licensed marijuana production or processing 

facility be located within 1,000 feet of the perimeter of a parcel on which 

a state-licensed marijuana retail facility or medical cannabis collective 

garden is located. The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight 

line distance from property line of the proposed building/business 

location to the property line of the entities listed below.in the manner set 

forth in WAC 314-55-050(10). 

(e) No production, processing or delivery of marijuana may be visible to the public 

 nor may it be visible through windows. 

(f) Marijuana retail uses shall not include drive-throughs, exterior, or off-site sales. 

(g) All fertilizers, chemicals, gases and hazardous materials shall be handled in 

compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. No fertilizers, 

chemicals, gases or hazardous materials shall be allowed to enter neither a 

sanitary sewer or stormwater sewer system nor be released into the atmosphere 

outside of the structure where the facility is located. 

(h) No odors shall be allowed to migrate beyond the interior portion of the structure 

where a marijuana facility is located. 

(i) A City of Oak Harbor business license pursuant to Chapter 5.03 OHMC and a 

state license pursuant to Chapter 314-55 WAC shall be obtained prior to the start 

of operations of the facility. 

(j) All facilities shall comply with Chapter 19.27 RCW, State Building Code Act 

a n d  T i t l e  17  B uildings. Appropriate permits shall be obtained for all changes 

of use, tenant improvements, mechanical system improvements, electrical 

upgrades and similar work. 

 

Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Non-conforming Uses” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

 

(1) No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana producer, marijuana processor, or 

marijuana retailer as those terms are defined in this ordinance, that was engaged in that 

activity prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have been a legally 

established use under the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code and that us shall 

not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status. 
 

204



ATTACHMENT 1 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 8 of 8 

P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational 

code (1).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\11-26-13\Marijuana\Recreational code (1).docx 

Section Six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Seven.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 

publishing. 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk  Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 

Published: _______________ 

205



ATTACHMENT 2

206



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
 ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 1/5 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013.  

C-4 – Highway Service Commercial 

19.20.375 Principal permitted uses. 
The following uses are permitted outright in the C-4 district: 
(1) Automobile and truck service stations; 
(2) Automobile sales and service; 
(3) Boat sales and boat repair; 
(4) Car washes; 
(5) Coffee kiosks; 
(6) Contractor offices and related storage; 
(7) Drive-in banks; 
(8) Equipment rental; 
(9) Farm and garden supplies, plant nurseries; 
(10) Furniture manufacturing; 
(11) Furniture sales; 
(12) Mobile and modular home sales; 
(13) Printing and publishing; 
(14) Professional and scientific instrument manufacturing; 
(15) Real estate sales; 
(16) Recreational vehicle sales; 
(17) Restaurants; 
(18) Retail or wholesale building supplies and hardware; 
(19) Self-storage facilities. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.380 Accessory permitted uses. 
The following uses are permitted as accessory uses to a permitted use in the C-4 

district: 
(1) A use customarily incidental and subordinate to a principal use permitted 

outright; 
(2) On-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities as an accessory use to 

any activity generating hazardous waste and lawfully allowed in this zone; provided, that 
such facilities meet the state siting criteria adopted pursuant to the requirements of 
RCW 70.105.210; 

(3) Television satellite dish reflectors, roof-mounted and within building setback lines 
not to exceed 35-foot height limitations. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.390 Conditional uses permitted. 
The following principal uses and their accessory uses may be permitted in a C-4 

district when authorized by the hearing examiner: 
(1) Amateur radio tower and antenna; 
(2) Government buildings for administrative or protective services; 
(3) Government storage yards, treatment plants, well sites, pump stations; 
(4) Public transportation shelter stations; 
(5) Public utility and communications facility; 
(6) Radio and television broadcasting stations and towers; 

207



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
 ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 2/5 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013.  

(7) Crematorium or mortuary, but only if adjacent to or across the street from a 
cemetery. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

 

PIP – Planned Industrial Park 

19.20.605 Principal permitted uses. 
Primary uses permitted in the PIP district provide a broad range of activities 

including research, light assembly and light manufacturing. Specific primary types of 
uses allowable include: 

(1) Assembly, manufacture, packaging, compounding or treatment of articles or 
merchandise from the following previously prepared materials: cloth, glass, lacquer, 
leather, paper, plastics, precious or semiprecious metals or stones, wood (excluding 
sawmills, lumber mills and planing mills), paint, clay, sand, rubber; 

(2) Printing, publishing and book binding; 
(3) Manufacturing, processing and packaging of food, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, 

cosmetics, optical goods, scientific instruments and equipment, and precision 
instruments and equipment; 

(4) Scientific research, testing and experimental development laboratories; 
(5) Corporate headquarters, regional headquarters and administrative offices of 

commercial, industrial, financial, charitable or governmental institutions; 
(6) Upholstery shop; 
(7) Auto repair of all kinds, including body and fender work, provided there shall be 

no wrecking, junking, dismantling, or salvaging operations; 
(8) Feed and seed store, retail or wholesale; 
(9) Marine craft, equipment and supply sales, and repair and service of small craft; 
(10) Nursery and landscape material including greenhouses; 
(11) Plumbing shop; 
(12) Sign shop; 
(13) Lumber yard, retail or wholesale, including building supplies, hardware, and 

related items; 
(14) Mini-storage facilities; 
(15) Vocational and technical schools; 
(16) Private club, lodge, convent, social or recreational building or community 

assembly hall (except those having a chief activity carried on for monetary gain); 
(17) Training facilities, including but not limited to music, dance, martial arts, 

photography, health clubs; 
(18) Warehousing and distribution centers; 
(19) Automobile sales and service; 
(20) Uses similar to, related to, or compatible with those listed or described in this 

section are permitted upon a finding by the planning director that a proposed use does 
not conflict with the intent of this section or the policies of the Oak Harbor 
comprehensive plan. The criteria for such finding of similarity, relationship or 
compatibility shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

(a) The proposed use will not significantly impact surrounding uses; 

208



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
 ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 3/5 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013.  

(b) The development standards for permitted uses can be met by the proposed 
use; 

(c) Impacts, such as traffic, noise and air quality, will not be significantly different 
than those generated by permitted uses. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.610 Accessory permitted uses. 
Accessory uses complement but do not conflict with the primary use. Specific 

accessory types of uses allowable include: 
(1) Warehousing and distribution facilities and the storage of goods or products 

clearly subordinate to, and an integral part of, the primary permitted uses; 
(2) Engineering, development, administrative or executive offices which are part of a 

primary use; 
(3) Retail development may be permitted where it can be demonstrated that the 

industrial park will be clearly and primarily benefited by the convenience of such retail 
facilities. The total square footage devoted to retail development shall not exceed 10 
percent of the developable floor area of the PIP district in which it is located. The total 
square footage of a single retail use may not exceed 5,000 square feet and the total 
square footage of all retail uses may not exceed 25 percent of a building’s gross floor 
area. Signs for retail uses shall be visible only within the planned industrial park area 
and attached to the building wall. Retail uses include: 

(a) Support retail, such as food and drug stores, banks and office supplies; 
(b) Personal services such as barber and beauty shops, dry cleaning, laundry; 
(c) Business services, such as printing and copying, photo processing, 

postal/mail, word processing, travel agencies; 
(d) Food services, such as delicatessens, restaurants (except drive-ins); 
(e) Recreation facilities, except mechanical or electronic games centers, theaters 

(live and movie) and games of skill, such as bowling; 
(f) Day care centers; 
(g) Showrooms and galleries; and 
(h) Caretaker’s quarters. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.615 Conditional uses permitted. 
The following principal uses and their accessory uses may be permitted in a PIP 

district when authorized by the board of adjustment under Chapter 19.67 OHMC: 
(1) Fuel yards; 
(2) Concrete and asphalt batch plants for a defined temporary period of time; 
(3) Fuel oil distribution, retail and wholesale, provided incidental storage is 

maintained underground; 
(4) Dog kennels; 
(5) Equipment rental businesses; 
(6) Excavations, other than simple foundation; 
(7) Public transportation transfer stations; 
(8) Public utility and communications facility, such as a branch telephone exchange, 

static transformer, booster station, pumping station; and 

209



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
 ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 4/5 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013.  

(9) Small businesses specializing in the production of chemical products, fertilizers, 
rodenticide, insecticide, and pesticide, but not including ammonia and explosives, may 
be permitted where it meets the following criteria: 

(a) The business will meet the environmental performance standards in OHMC 
19.20.660; 

(b) There shall be no outside storage of chemicals, ingredients, products or 
byproducts. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

 

I – Industrial 

19.20.730 Principal permitted uses. 
In an I district, the following are principal permitted buildings and uses: 
(1) Principal uses permitted in a C-3 district except those as specifically prohibited in 

OHMC 19.20.620; 
(2) Automobile sales and service; 
(3) Bedding, carpet and pillow manufacture, cleaning and renovating; 
(4) Bottling and processing of nonalcoholic beverages, the production of which is 

devoid of fumes, noxious odors, or waste products; 
(5) Cold storage plants; 
(6) Food and drug processing; 
(7) Manufacture and assembly of light and small items made from previously 

prepared materials and includes operations which do not create noise, smoke, odor, 
vibration or other objectionable nuisances to the extent that they are detrimental to 
surrounding uses; 

(8) Public utilities; 
(9) Welding and machine shop; 
(10) Other uses of similar character, subject to approval by the city council. (Ord. 

1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.740 Accessory permitted uses. 
In an I district, the following are accessory uses permitted outright: 
(1) A use customarily incidental and subordinate to a principal use permitted 

outright; 
(2) On-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities as an accessory use to 

any activity generating hazardous waste and lawfully allowed in this zone; provided, that 
such facilities meet the state siting criteria adopted pursuant to the requirements of 
RCW 70.105.210. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

19.20.750 Conditional uses permitted. 
The following principal uses and their accessory uses may be permitted in an I 

district when authorized by the hearing examiner: 
(1) Any conditional use permitted in a C-3 district; 
(2) Cement and asphalt plants; 

210



Oak Harbor Municipal Code  
 ATTACHMENT 3 

Page 5/5 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1671, passed October 1, 2013.  

(3) Manufacture or processing of such nondurable goods as chemical and allied 
products, petroleum products, fertilizers, but excluding explosives and ammonia; 

(4) Metal fabrication and boiler or tank works; 
(5) Mixing plants for concrete or paving material; 
(6) Off-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities; provided, that such 

facilities meet the state siting criteria adopted pursuant to the requirements of RCW 
70.105.210; 

(7) Oxygen manufacture and/or storage; 
(8) Produce stand; 
(9) Rodenticide, insecticide and pesticide mixing plants; 
(10) Wrecking yard. (Ord. 1573 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1555 § 8, 2009). 

211



 

Planning Commission 
December 10, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
December 10, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Sandi Peterson, Greg Wasinger, Kristi Jensen and Ana 

Schlecht 
Absent: Bruce Freeman and David Fikse  
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner, 
Cac Kamak  

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None present for comment. 
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 26, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 1) and provided the Planning 
Commission an updated version of the draft code (Attachment 2).  Mr. Powers reviewed the 
progress to date and reported that the draft code was revised to add definitions from the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) and some definitions were revised to match the WAC 
definitions.  Staff also revised how the distances from marijuana facilities are measured per the 
Liquor Control Board and some of the language was clarified.  Mr. Powers also reviewed the 
community involvement methods, the schedule and stated that the goal is to complete this 
project before March 3, 2014 if possible.  Mr. Powers asked the Commission to open the public 
hearing, accept public testimony, provide feedback and continue the public hearing to January 
28, 2014. 
 
 Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing.  No one was present for comment.  
 
ACTION: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED A MOTION TO 

CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE MARIJUANA RELATED USES 
CODE TO THE JANUARY 28, 2014 MEETING.  MOTION CARRIED.  

 
Planning Commissioners had the following questions/comments: 
 

 Page 81, item f, needs clarification as to the kind of odor are we referring to.  Staff will 
look to the WAC for guidance and if guidance can’t be found there staff will draw some 
language from the Oak Harbor Municipal Code that talks about noxious/nuisance odors.  

 Page 5 of the draft code item number 14, are we eliminating all the examples of moving 
them to another area of the code?  Mr. Powers indicated that sentence is verbatim from 
state law except for the examples.  Staff feels it is best to stick with what the state 
definition is and not to limit ourselves to examples. 

 Does the Washington state superintendent of public instruction recognize private 
schools?  Mr. Powers said the law doesn’t address the distinction between public and 
private schools.  Staff will verify whether or not private schools are also recognized by 
the state superintendent of public instruction. 

 

212



 

Planning Commission 
December 10, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak reported that there were no applications for land use changes this year. The 2014 
docket includes Capital Improvement Plan updates, continued work on the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan updates, 1000 SE City Beach Street zoning change and the scenic view 
study.  The docket will be advertised in January and the Planning Commission will be asked to 
forward a recommendation the City Council at the January 28th meeting.   
 
ADJOURN:  7:56 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

213



1 

Marijuana Related Uses -  
Code Amendment Project 

Planning Commission 

December 10, 2013 

Purpose 

•Present revised draft ordinance

•Open public hearing
•Accept testimony

•Continue hearing

Background 

•October PC meeting
• Info on medical and recreational marijuana laws presented
• Moratoria ordinances 
• Preliminary map with 1,000 foot buffers from sensitive land

uses 

•November PC meeting
• Revised map
• Zoning code review 
• Initial draft

Revised Draft 

•Definitions revised to match WAC
• Example – child care center

•Added definitions from WAC
• Example – elementary school 

•Revised how distances measured per LCB

•Clarified language in places

ATTACHMENT 1

214



2 

Additional Items 

•No changes to map

•Principal, accessory and conditional uses
provided to PC for C-4, PIP and I zoning
districts

Schedule 

• 12/10/13 Planning Commission – PC continues the public 
hearing 

• 1/22/14 City Council – Brief CC on PC work

• 1/28/14 Planning Commission – Closes public hearing and
makes recommendation to CC 

• 2/4/14  City Council – CC considers draft ordinance

• 2/18/14 City Council – CC considers draft ordinance (if 
necessary) 

Community Involvement 

• Planning Commission meetings and hearings

• City Council hearings 

• Provide written comments on SEPA checklist/decision

• Provide written comments to staff

• Call or talk to staff

• Contact us!
– (360) 279-4511

– spowers@oakharbor.org 

• Meeting notices 

– http://www.oakharbor.org 

 Recommended Action 

• Open public hearing 

• Accept testimony 

•  Provide feedback to staff

• Continue public hearing to January 28, 2014

– Suggested motion: I move the Planning Commission 
continue the public hearing on the marijuana related uses
code to the January 28, 2014 meeting. 

ATTACHMENT 1

215



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 1 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

WHEREAS, the voters of Washington State approved Initiative 502 (I-502) in November 2012 

legalizing under State law the, taxing and regulating of the recreational use of marijuana, 

codified in Chapter 69.50 RCW ; and  

WHEREAS, under I-502, the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) was tasked with 

the responsibility to adopt the rules governing the licensing and operations of marijuana 

producers, processors, and retailers, and the rules went into effect on Nov. 16, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice distributed a guidance memo to 

U.S. Attorneys regarding state implementation of recreational marijuana ballot measures and 

setting forth the federal government enforcement priorities, essentially acknowledging that as 

long as state regulation and enforcement is sufficiently robust and consistent with federal 

priorities, the federal government may choose not to interfere; and  

WHEREAS, the 1,000-foot separations from sensitive uses required by I-502 and included in the 

adopted licensing rules are principally about protecting children, which the City Council and the 

citizens of Oak Harbor support; and 

WHEREAS, the LCB has created three categories of state licenses and prohibits holders of a 

retail license from also holding a production or processing license;   

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council finds that establishment of marijuana related uses 

without appropriate regulations could lead to negative secondary impacts to the community, 

including but not necessarily limited to: 

1. Conversion of residential uses into cannabis cultivation and processing facilities

removing valuable housing stock from the community.

2. Degraded neighborhood aesthetics due to shuttered-up homes, offensive odors, increased

nighttime traffic, and parking.

3. Environmental damages from chemicals being discharged into surrounding and off-site

soils, and into storm and sanitary sewer systems.

4. Risk of fire hazard due to overloaded service connections used to operate grow lights and

fans.

5. Illegal structural modifications.

6. Criminal issues such as burglary, theft and property damage.

WHEREAS, an undue concentration of licensed marijuana facilities in the City of Oak Harbor 

could be detrimental to the quality of life of Oak Harbor residents and the economic well-being 

of the city; and  

WHEREAS, in order to address secondary impacts of such businesses, the Oak Harbor City 

Council deems it to be in the public interest to establish zoning regulations related to state-

216



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 2 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

licensed marijuana facilities and to require all such facilities to obtain a City of Oak Harbor 

business license; and   

WHEREAS, the intent to amend development regulations to allow state-licensed marijuana 

facilities and a SEPA Determination of Non Significance were noticed in accordance with cCity 

of Oak Harbor procedures and regulations; and  

WHEREAS, a Determination of Non Significance was issued on __ ______ 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 

26, 2013, and December 10, 2013 and January 28, 2014 to consider this ordinance and forwarded 

a recommendation to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak City Council held a public hearing on _______, 2014 to consider 

this ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 

approve violation of federal or state law; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.22 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code 

which shall have the following title and sections: 

Chapter 19.22 

MARIJUANA RELATED USES 

Sections:  

19.22.010  Purpose and Intent 

19.22.020  Definitions 

19.22.030  Locations Allowed 

19.22.040  Development Standards 

19.22.050  Non-conforming Use 

Section Two.   

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.010 entitled “Purpose and Intent” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

The production, processing and retailing of marijuana is and remains illegal under federal law.  

Nothing herein or as provided elsewhere in the ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor is an 

authorization to circumvent federal law or provide permission to any person or entity to violate 

federal law.  Only state-licensed marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and marijuana 

retailers may locate in the City of Oak Harbor and then only pursuant to a license issued by the 

State of Washington and only when in full compliance with the local regulations contained in 

herein..  The purposes of tThese provisions regulations are is solely intended to acknowledge the 

enactment by Washington voters of Initiative 502 and state licensing procedure and to permit, to, 

217



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 3 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

but only to, the extent required by state law, marijuana producers, marijuana processors, and 

marijuana retailers to operate in designated zones of the City.  These provisions are intended to 

mitigate potential secondary impacts of marijuana related uses on nearby properties and the 

community and to promote the public health, safety and welfare through the application of 

appropriate locational criteria, zoning and development standards.   

Section Three. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.020 entitled “Definitions” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) “Child care center” means an entity that regularly provides child day care, preschool and 

early learning services for a group of children for periods of less than twenty-four hours 

licensed by the Washington state department of early learning under Chapter 170-295 

WAC. Child care centers include: Commercial Day Care, “Family Day Care” and “Day 

Nursery” entities. 

(2) “Elementary school” means a school for early education that provides the first four to 

eight years of basic education and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of 

public instruction. 

(23) “Game arcade” means an entertainment venue featuring primarily video games, 

simulators, and/or other amusement devices where persons under twenty-one years of 

age are not restricted. 

(34) “Library” means an organized collection of resources made accessible to the public 

for reference or borrowing supported with money derived from taxation. 

(45) “Marijuana” or “Cannabis” “marihuana” means all parts of the plant Cannabis, whether 

growing or not, with a THC concentration greater than 0.3 percent on a dry weight 

basis; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every 

compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds 

or resin. The term does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from 

the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, 

manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the 

resin extracted there from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seeds of the plant which 

is incapable of germination. 

(56) “Marijuana facility” means a state-licensed marijuana production, processing, or 

retail facility. or a medical cannabis collective garden. Marijuana facilities shall not 

be a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 -Definitions and as authorized 

under OHMC 19.34. 

(67) “Marijuana-infused products” means products that contain marijuana or marijuana 

extracts and are intended for human use. The term “marijuana-infused products” does 

not include useable marijuana. 

218



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 4 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

(78) “Marijuana processing facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

process, package, and label usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale 

at wholesale to marijuana retailers.  A marijuana processing facility shall not be a home 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

(89) “Marijuana processor” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

process marijuana into useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products, package and 

label useable marijuana and marijuana-infused products for sale in retail outlets, and 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products at wholesale to marijuana 

retailers. 

(910) “Marijuana producer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

produce and sell marijuana at wholesale to marijuana processors and other marijuana 

producers. 

(1011) “Marijuana production facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington 

to produce marijuana for sale at wholesale to marijuana processor licensees and to 

other marijuana producers. A marijuana production facility shall not be a home 

occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under OHMC 

19.34. 

(1112) “Marijuana retailer” means a person licensed by the state liquor control board to 

sell usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products in a retail outlet. 

(1213) “Marijuana retail facility” means an entity licensed by the State of Washington to 

sell only usable marijuana, marijuana-infused products and marijuana paraphernalia 

to persons twenty-one years of age and older. A marijuana retail facility shall not be 

a home occupation as defined in OHMC 19.08 - Definitions and as authorized under 

OHMC 19.34. 

(1314) “Playground” means a public outdoor recreation area for children, usually equipped 

with swings, slides, and other playground equipment, owned and/or managed by a 

city, county, state, or federal government. 

(15) “Public park” means an area of land for the enjoyment of the public, having facilities 

for rest and/or recreation, such as a baseball diamond or basketball court, owned and/or 

managed by a city, county, state, federal government, or metropolitan park district. 

Public park does not include trails. 

(16) “Public transit center” means a facility located outside of the public right of way that is 

owned and managed by a transit agency or city, county, state, or federal government for 

the express purpose of staging people and vehicles where several bus or other transit 

routes converge.  They serve as efficient hubs to allow bus riders from various 

locations to assemble at a central point to take advantage of express trips or other route 

to route transfers. 

219



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 5 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

(1417) “Recreation center or facility” means a supervised center that provides a broad range of 

activities and events intended primarily for use by including programming for persons 

under twenty-one years of age, owned and/or managed by a charitable nonprofit 

organization, city, county, state, or federal government.  Examples include, but are not 

limited to, the John Vanderzicht Memorial Pool and Oak Harbor Boys & Girls Club. 

(1518) “Retail outlet” means a location licensed by the State Liquor Control Board for the retail 

sale of usable marijuana and marijuana-infused products. 

(19) “Secondary school” means a high and/or middle school:  A school for students who have 

completed their primary education, usually attended by children in grades seven to twelve 

and recognized by the Washington state superintendent of public instruction. 

(1620) “Useable marijuana” means dried marijuana flowers. The term “usable marijuana” does not 

include marijuana-infused products. 

Section Four. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.030 entitled “Locations Allowed” to the Oak Harbor 

Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) State licensed marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate in the city 

pursuant to the following restrictions: 

(a) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors must comply with all requirements 

of state law and the Washington State Liquor Control Board’s regulations. 

(b) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors may locate only in the Planned  

Industrial Park or Industrial district(s). 

(c) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate on a site or in a 

building in which non-conforming production or processing uses have been 

established in any zone other than the Planned Industrial Park or Industrial 

district(s). 

(d) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not operate as an accessory 

to a primary use or as a home occupation. 

(e) Marijuana producers and marijuana processors shall not locate within one 

thousand feet of the perimeter of the grounds of any elementary or secondary 

school, playground, recreation center or facility, child care center, public park, 

public transit center, or library, or any game arcade where admission to which is 

not restricted to persons aged twenty-one years or older.  The distance shall be 

measured as the shortest straight line distance from the property line of the 

proposed building/business location to the property line of the entities listed 

above. 

(2) State licensed marijuana retailers may locate in the city pursuant to the following 

restrictions: 

220



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 6 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

(a) Marijuana retailers must comply with all requirements of state law and the 

Washington State Liquor control Board’s regulations. 

(b) Marijuana retailers may locate only in the C-4 and Industrial district(s). 

(c) Marijuana retailers shall not locate in a building in which non-conforming retail 

uses have been established in any residential or office zone. 

(e) Marijuana retailers shall not operate as an accessory to a primary use or as a home 

occupation. 

(f) Marijuana retailers shall not locate within one thousand feet of the perimeter of 

the grounds of any elementary or secondary school, playground, recreation center 

or facility, child care center, public park, public transit center, or library, or any 

game arcade where admission to which is not restricted to persons aged twenty-

one years or older.  The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line 

distance from the property line of the proposed building/business location to the 

property line of the entities listed above. 

Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Development Standards” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) Marijuana retail, processing and production facilities.  In addition to the standards of the 

underlying zoning district and all other applicable Municipal Code regulations, all state-

licensed marijuana facilities shall meet the following development standards: 

(a) All facilities must be state-licensed and comply with all of the standards for 

state licensed marijuana facilities. 

(b) No marijuana facility shall be allowed as a home occupation. 

(c) The definitions set forth in RCW 69.50.101-.102, WAC 314-55-010 and OHMC 

Section 19.22.020 shall control. In the event of conflict, the provisions of OHMC 

shall prevail. 

(d) Location. 

(i) No more than one facility shall be located on a single parcel. 

(ii) Marijuana retail and processing facilities shall be located fully within a  

permanent structure designed to comply with the city building code and 

constructed under a building and/or tenant improvement permit from the 

city regardless of the size or configuration of the structure. 

(iii) Marijuana production facilities shall be located: 

(A) Fully within Within a permanent, fully enclosed structure 

designed to comply with the city building code and constructed 

under a building and/or a tenant improvement permit from the city 

regardless of the size or configuration of the structure; or 

(B) In non-rigid greenhouses, other structures, or an expanse of open 

or clear ground fully enclosed by a physical barrier enclosed by a 

sight obscuring wall or fence eight (8) feet high. 

(iv) Marijuana facilities shall not be located in a mobile structure or vehicle. 
(v) No state-licensed marijuana facility shall be located within 1,000 feet of 

the perimeter of the parcel on which any of the entities listed below are 
located. The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight line 
distance from property line of the proposed building/business location to 

221



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 7 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

the property line of the entities listed below.in the manner set forth in 
WAC 314-55-050(10). 

(A) Elementary or secondary school (public or private); 

(B) Playground; 

(C) Recreation center or facility; 

(D) Child care center; 

(E) Public park; 

(F) Public transit center; 

(G) Library; 

(H) Any game arcade which allows admission to persons under 21 

years of age. 

(vi) No state-licensed marijuana retail facility shall be located within 1,000 feet 

of the perimeter of a parcel on which a state-licensed marijuana 

production or processing facility or medical cannabis collective garden is 

located. nor shall a state-licensed marijuana production or processing 

facility be located within 1,000 feet of the perimeter of a parcel on which 

a state-licensed marijuana retail facility or medical cannabis collective 

garden is located. The distance shall be measured as the shortest straight 

line distance from property line of the marijuana retail facility to the 

property line of the marijuana production or processing facility.in the 

manner set forth in WAC 314-55-050(10). 

(e) No production, processing or delivery of marijuana may be visible to the public 

nor may it be visible through windows. 

(f) Marijuana retail uses shall not include drive-throughs, exterior, or off-site sales. 

(g) All fertilizers, chemicals, gases and hazardous materials shall be handled in 

compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. No fertilizers, 

chemicals, gases or hazardous materials shall be allowed to enter neither a 

sanitary sewer or stormwater sewer system nor be released into the atmosphere 

outside of the structure where the facility is located. 

(h) No odors shall be allowed to migrate beyond the interior portion of the structure 

where a marijuana facility is located. 

(i) A City of Oak Harbor business license pursuant to Chapter 5.03 OHMC and a 

state license pursuant to Chapter 314-55 WAC shall be obtained prior to the start 

of operations of the facility. 

(j) All facilities shall comply with Chapter 19.27 RCW, State Building Code Act 

a n d  T i t l e  17  B uildings. Appropriate permits shall be obtained for all changes 

of use, tenant improvements, mechanical system improvements, electrical 

upgrades and similar work. 

Section Five. 

There is hereby added new Section 19.22.040 entitled “Non-conforming Uses” to the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

(1) No use that constitutes or purports to be a marijuana producer, marijuana processor, or 

marijuana retailer as those terms are defined in this ordinance, that was engaged in that 

activity prior to the enactment of this ordinance shall be deemed to have been a legally 

222



ATTACHMENT 2 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX – Page 8 of 8 
P:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code (2).docxP:\PlanCom\PC13\12-10-13\Recreational code 

(2).docxP:\Marijuana\Recreational code (2).docx 

established use under the provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code and that us shall 

not be entitled to claim legal non-conforming status. 

Section Six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Seven.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 

publishing. 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2014. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk  Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 

Published: _______________ 

223



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
January 28, 2014 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Sandi Peterson, David Fikse and Ana Schlecht 

Absent: Greg Wasinger, Kristi Jensen and Bruce Freeman  
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Cac Kamak and Ethan Spoo 

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None present for comment. 
 
MINUTES: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 10, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers reported the latest developments on the State level and reviewed the revisions to 
the draft code that resulted from the questions raise by the Planning Commission at their last 
meeting regarding odor.  The second question regarded whether the Washington State 
Superintendant of Public Instruction recognized private schools and the answer is yes. 
 
Mr. Powers reported that the City Council was briefed on the status of the project and in 
response to the recent events at the State level staff outlined three courses of action: 
 

1.  Continue with the current work program. 
2.  Stop working on the recreational rules and continue both moratoria. 
3.  Provide staff different policy direction for recreational marijuana in light of the Attorney 

General’s opinion and continue the moratorium on medical marijuana. 
 
City Council leaned toward staying the course. 
 
Mr. Powers recommended that the Planning Commission conclude the public hearing and 
recommend approval of Ordinance No. 1685. 
               
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing seeing no public comment the hearing was closed. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed whether or not the City should proceed with its adoption 
given the Attorney General’s opinion.  They also discussed the impact the pending legislation to 
limit a city’s authority to ban marijuana related uses.  The Commission believed the draft code 
appropriately addressed the issues but expressed concern that something might need to 
change based on future actions at the State level.  The Commission felt it was important for 
them to complete their work on time but noted the Council may wish to extend the moratorium 
and take additional time to study this issue. 
 
Mr. Fakkema noted that the definition for “arcade” needs to be used uniformly throughout the 
ordinance. 
 
 

224



ACTION: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MR. FIKSE SECONDED A MOTION TO 
RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINACE No. 1685 
WITH THE CORRECTION TO USE THE DEFINITION OF GAME ARCADE 
UNIFORMLY THROUGHOUT THE ORDINANCE, MOTION CARRIED.  

 
ACTION: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL EXTEND THE MORITORIUM FOR 
ANOTHER SIX MONTHS TO SEE WHAT HAPPENS AT THE STATE LEVEL. 

 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak described the process for formulating the docket. Mr. Kamak noted that one 
additional item was added to the docket. The 2014 docket now includes the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan updates, Capital Improvement Plan updates, Future Land Use Map UGA 
corrections, 1000 SE City Beach Street zoning change and continued work on the he scenic 
view study.  
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing seeing no public comment the hearing was closed. 
 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE 2014 COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN DOCKET AS PRESENTED. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak explained that Revised Code of Washington requires local governments to establish and 
broadly communicate to the public a Public Participation Plan (PPP) which identifies procedures 
providing for “early and continuous public participation” in the amendment of the Comprehensive Plan 
and development regulations implementing such plan. 
 
Mr. Kamak reviewed the various methods the City is using to invite public participation and requested 
that the Planning Commission provide input on how the PPP could be improved. 
 
Mr. Kamak reported that the PPP is tentatively scheduled for the February Planning Commission 
meeting for a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Fakkema asked how often the Comprehensive Plan is reviewed.  Mr. Kamak said it use to be every 
seven years but due to the economic downturn the State had change the requirement to every eight 
years. 
 
ANNUAL REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers presented the draft report to the City Council and asked the Commission to think 
about would general recommendations they would like to the City Council.  Ms. Schlecht 
volunteered to prepare general recommendations and provide them to staff before the February 
25, 2014 meeting. 
 
ADJOURN:  8:25 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

225



226



227



228



229



230



231



ORDINANCE NO. 1684 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1587 “THE UTILITY RATES ORDINANCE”. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 1587 on October 6, 2010, including rates for 
storm water service based on a rate study conducted by HDR Engineering, Inc.; and  
 
WHEREAS, Oak Harbor Municipal Code 12.40.075 provides that storm water system charges 
shall be sufficient, in the opinion of the City Council, to pay system cost; and  
 
WHEREAS, due to unanticipated expenses for archaeology in connection with the storm water 
facilities in Pioneer Way, the storm water service rates established in Ordinance 1587 are no 
longer sufficient revenues for the costs of the storm water service system; and  
 
WHEREAS, HDR Engineering, Inc. updated to the storm water rate study incorporating the 
unanticipated costs and recommending updated storm water service rates that provide sufficient 
revenues for the costs of the storm water service system; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the opinion of the City Council, the recommended rates are necessary and 
sufficient to pay the costs of the storm water service system, including the unanticipated costs of 
archaeology for the Pioneer Way storm facility and should be approved. 
 
Now, therefore,  
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 
 
Section One.  Section 3 of Ordinance 1587 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 12.40 OHMC, the following rates are set for storm water service by the City 
of Oak Harbor Storm Drain Utility:  
 
MONTHLY 
STORM DRAIN 
RATE 

Effective 
12/20/10 

Effective 
12/20/11 

Effective 
12/20/12 

Effective 
12/20/13 

Effective  
02/21/14 

Effective  
12/20/14 

Residential       
Single Family 
per account 

$11.00 
 

$11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

Multi-Family 
per unit 

$11.00 $11.20 $11.45 $11.70 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

Commercial 
per ERU 

      

Commercial $11.00 $11.20 $11.45 $11.45 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

Multi-
Commercial 

$11.00 $11.20 $11.45 $11.45 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

232



Hotel/Motel $11.00 $11.20 $11.45 $11.45 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

Commercial 
& Residential 

$11.00 $11.20 $11.45 $11.45 $13.92 $11.95 
$14.22 

Schools $8.80 $9.52 $10.31 $11.12 $13.23 $11.95 
$14.22 

Churches & 
Non-Profits 

$4.40 $6.16 $8.02 $9.95 $11.84 $11.95 
$14.22 

 
Section Two.  All other provisions of Ordinance 1587 not specifically amended by this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.   
 
Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2014. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted:    
Published:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
l:\lglg\ordinances and resolutions 2014\storm water rate ordinace 1684(2).doc 

233


	Agenda for 2/04/2014
	C/A 4.a. Minutes for 01/21/2014
	C/A 4.b. Approval of Accounts Payable
	Voucher Lists

	C/A 4.c. Approval of Professional Services Agreement - John Galt
	Professional Services Agreement
	Exhibit A - Scope of Services

	C/A 4.d. Appointment of Melissa Riker as Parks Board Alternate
	Biography of Melissa Riker

	C/A 4.e. Bid Rejection- Booster Pumps
	C/A 4.f. Roll Cart Purchase
	C/A 4.g. Re-appoint Councilmember Jim Campbell to the Island Transit Board of Directors
	6.a. City of Oak Harbor Sister City Program
	Resolution 14-07

	7.a. Recreational Marijuana Related Uses
	Exhibit A: Ordinance 1685
	Exhibit B: Agenda Bill, attachments and minutes from Council Meeting 09/03/2013
	Exhibit C: Agenda Bill, attachments and minutes from Council Meeting 10/01/2013
	Exhibit D: Planning Commission Report, attachments and minutes from 10/22/2013 
	Exhibit E: Planning Commission Report, attachments and minutes from 11/26/2013
	Exhibit F: Planning Commission Report, attachments and minutes from 12/10/2013
	Exhibit G: Planning Commission Report, attachments and minutes from 01/28/2014

	7.b. Medical Marijuana Moratorium Extension
	Ordinance 1686

	7.c. Amend Ordinance No. 1578 Storm Water Rates
	Ordinance 1684





